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ORDER OF REFERENCE ORDRE DE RENVOI
Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Extrait des Proces-verbaux du Sénat du mardi 18 février
Tuesday, February 18, 1992: 1992

“With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator Stewart moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator MacDonald (Halifax):

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to hear evidence and to examine
and report on matters relating to national security and
defence and the future roles of Canada’s armed forces;

That the membership of the Senate Committee on For-
eign Affairs be increased to twenty (20) members and
that Rule 87(1)(h) be suspended in relation thereto; and

That the Committee present its report no later than
March 31, 1993.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

«Avec la permission du Sénat,
L’honorable sénateur Stewart, propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur MacDonald (Halifax):

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étran-
géres soit autorisé a entendre des témoignages et & exami-
ner, pour en faire rapport, des questions ayant trait a la
sécurité et a la défense nationale ainsi qu’au rdle que les
Forces armées canadiennes seront appelées a jouer dans
’avenir;

Que la composition du comité sénatorial permanent des
affaires étrangéres soit augmentée a vingt (20) membres
et que I'application de I'articie 87(1)A) soit suspendue a
cet égard; et

Que le Comité présente son rapport au plus tard le 31
mars 1993.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Adopted.”
Le greffier du Sénat
Gordon L. Barnhart
Clerk of the Senate
Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Stand- Extrait des Proces-verbaux du Comité sénatorial perma-

ing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs, Tuesday, March nent
31, 1992:

*“Pursuant to Role 97(4) of the Rules of the Senate, the
Honourable Senator Roblin moved—

That a Subcommittee of the Standing Senate Commit-
tee on Foreign Affairs, to be known as the Subcommittee
on Security and National Defence, be appointed;

That the Subcommittee be authorized to hear evidence
and to examine and report on matters relating to national
security and defence and the future roles of Canada’s
armed forces; and

That the Subcommittee be composed of the Honour-
able Senators Balfour, Cools, Corbin, Doody, LeBlanc
(Beauséjour), Marshall, Meighen, Phillips and the Chair-
man of the Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs ex

officio.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

des Affaires étrangeres, le mardi 31 mars 1992:

.

«Conformément a Il'article 97(4) du Reéglement du
Sénat, I’honorable sénateur Roblin propose—

Que soit créé un sous-comité du comité sénatorial per-
manent des affaires étrangéres qui porterait le nom de
sous-comité sur la sécurité et la défense nationale;

Que le sous-comité soit autorisé¢ a entendre des témoi-
gnages et a examiner, pour en faire rapport, des questions
ayant trait 4 la sécurité et & la défense nationales ainsi
qu’aux roles que les Forces armées canadiennes seront
appelées a jouer dans l'avenir; et

Que le sous-comité soit composé des honorables séna-
teurs Balfour, Cools, Corbin, Doody, LeBlanc (Beausé-
jour), Marshall, Meighen, Phillips et le président du
comité sénatorial des Affaires é&trangéres membre
d’office.

La question, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Comité

Line Gravel

Clerk of the Committee
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(1 (1)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Subcommittee on Security and National Defence of the
Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at 11:00
a.m. this day for the purpose of organization pursuant to Rule
69.

Members of the Subcommittee present: The Honourable
Senators Balfour, Cochrane, Cools, Doody, LeBlanc (Beausé-
jour), Marshall and Stewart. (7)

In attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.

The Clerk of the Subcommittee presided over the election of
the Chairman.

The Honourable Senator Doody moved,—That the Honour-
able Senator Balfour be elected Chairman of the Subcommit-
tee!

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The elected Chairperson was invited by the Clerk of the
Subcommittee to take the Chair.

The Honourable Senator LeBlanc moved,—That the Hon-
ourable Senator Corbin be elected Deputy Chairman of the
Subcommittee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator LeBlanc moved,—That four mem-
bers shall constitute a quorum for the Subcommittee, as long
as both parties, the government and the opposition, are repre-
sented.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Stewart moved,—That, pursuant
to Rule 90, the Chairman be authorized to hold meetings to
receive and authorize the printing of evidence when a quorum
is not present.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator LeBlanc moved,—That the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure be composed of the
Chairman, Deputy Chairman or their replacement, and one
other member of the Subcommittee to be designated by the

Chairman after the usual consultations and that the quorum
be two.

The ques!jon being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Doody moved,—That, pursuant to
Ru]e 103, reasonable travelling and living expenses may be
paid to witnesses invited or summoned to appear before the
Subcommittee, and that for such payment of expenses, specifi-
cally authorized by the Subcommittee on Agenda and Proce-

dure, a maximum of three (3) representatives per organization
be established.

Le Sous-comité de la sécurité et de la défense nationale du
Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangéres se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 11 heures, pour tenir sa séance d’organisation,
conformément a I'article 69 du Réglement.

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs Bal-
four, Cochrane, Cools, Doody, LeBlanc (Beauséjour), Mar-
shall et Stewart. (7)

Egalement présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

La greffiere du Sous-comité préside a I’élection du prési-
dent.

L’honorable sénateur Doody propose,—Que I’honorable
sénateur Balfour soit élu président du Sous-comité.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—

Adoptée.

La greffiére du Sous-comité invite le président élu a prendre
place au fauteuil.

L’honorable sénateur LeBlanc propose,—Que I’honorable
sénateur Corbin soit élu vice-président du Sous-comité.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—

Adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur LeBlanc propose,—Que le quorum du
Sous-comité soit de quatre membres, sous réserve que les deux
partis, a savoir le gouvernement et 'opposition, soient repré-
sentés.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—

Adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Stewart propose,—Qu’aux termes de
I'article 90 du Réglement, le président soit autorisé a tenir des
séances pour entendre des témoignages en |'absence de quorum
et a en ordonner I'impression.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—

Adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur LeBlanc propose,—Que le Sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure soit composé du pré-
sident et du vice-président, ou de leurs substituts, et d’'un autre
membre du Sous-comité désigné par le président aprés les con-
sultations d’usage, et que le quorum en soit de deux membres.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—
Adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Doody propose,—Qu’aux termes de
I'article 103 du Réglement, une indemnité raisonnable pour
frais de voyage et de séjour soit versée aux témoins invités ou
cités 4 comparaitre devant le Sous-comité, et qu’aux fins de
cette indemnité, que doit expressément autoriser le Sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure, le nombre maximal
de représentants de chaque organisme soit de trois (3).
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The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Doody moved,—That, pursuant to
paragraph 3:05 of Appendix III to the Rules of the Senate,
accounts for payment by the Subcommittee be certified by the
Chairman or the Deputy Chairman.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Marshall moved—That the Sub-
committee print 500 copies of its Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Doody moved,—That the Subcom-
mittee retain the services of the Parliamentary Centre for For-
eign Affairs and Foreign Trade as advisor to the Subcommit-
tee; and that the Chairman, on behalf of the Subcommittee,
direct the research staff in the preparation of studies, analyses
and summaries.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

At 11:30 a.m., the Subcommittee continued in camera.

At 11:40 a.m., the Subcommittee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

ATTEST:

Mise aux voix, la motion est—

Adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Doody propose,—Qu’aux termes du
paragraphe 3.05 de I’Annexe Il au Reéglement du Sénat, les
comptes d payer par le Sous-comité soient certifiés par le prési-
dent ou le vice-président du Sous-comité.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—

Adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Marshall propose,—Que le Sous-
comité fasse imprimer 500 copies de ses Procés-verbaux et
témoignages.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—

Adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Doody propose,—Que le Sous-comité
retienne les services-conseils du Centre parlementaire pour les
affaires étrangéres et le commerce extérieur, et que le prési-
dent, au nom du Sous-comité, dirige le personnel de recherche
dans la préparation des études, analyses et résumeés.

Mise aux voix, la motion est—
Adoptée.
A 11 h 30, la séance se poursuit 4 huis clos.

A 11 h 40, le Sous-comité ajourne ses travaux jusqu’a nou-
velle convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTE:

La greffiére du Sous-comité

Line Gravel

Clerk of the Subcommittee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Tuesday, April 7, 1992

[Text]

The Subcommittee on Security and National Defence of the
Committee on Foreign Affairs met this day at 11 a.m. to
organize the activities of the committee.

Ms. Line Gravel, Clerk of the Committee: We have a quo-
rum. We may now move to the first item on the agenda, which
is the election of the chairman.

Senator Doody: I nominate Senator Balfour.

The Clerk of the Committee: We have a motion by Senator
Doody that Senator Balfour be elected chairman of the sub-
committee. Is it agreed, honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
Senator R. James Balfour (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, colleagues. I now
invite nominations for deputy chairman.

Senator LeBlanc: Mr. Chairman, [ nominate Senator Cor-
bin for the position of deputy chairman. I was informed in my
last conversation with the deputy leader that he is ready to
serve as deputy chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator LeBlanc. If there are no
further nominations, I declare the nominations closed.

Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I declare Senator Corbin to be duly elected
deputy chairman.

I now invite a motion with respect to quorum for the sub-
committee. There are to be eight members on the subcommit-
tee. | suggest that an appropriate quorum is four. If honour-
able senators are agreeable, I invite a motion to that effect.

Senator LeBlanc: Mr. Chairman, I am not familiar with the
workings of these subcommittees. Is it normal that there be at
legst o?e representative from each formation on the subcom-
mittee”?

The Chairman: I think an appropriate arrangement would
be to _have at least one from either party. The motion may be
modified to that extent.

Is there any further discussion?

Senat'or Doody: Mr. Chairman, is it eight members or do I
count nine here on the agenda?

The Chairman: It is eight, plus Senator Stewart who is a

mgmber ex officio since he is chairman of the umbrella com-
mittee.

The Chairmap: If there is no further discussion, I will put
the question. Is it agreed, honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I declare the motion carried.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 7 avril 1992
[Traduction]
Les membres du Sous-comité de la sécurité et de la défense

nationale du Comité des affaires étrangéres se sont réunis en
ce jour a 11 h afin d’organiser les activités du Comité.

Mme Line Gravel, greffiére du Comité: Nous avons le quo-
rum. Nous pouvons passer au premier point 4 ’ordre du jour,
I’élection d’un président.

Le sénateur Doody: Je nomme le sénateur Balfour.

La greffiére du Comité: Le sénateur Doody propose que le
sénateur Balfour soit élu président du sous-comité. Honorables
sénateurs, adoptez-vous la motion?

Des voix: Adoptée.

Le sénateur R. James Balfour (président) occupe le fau-
teuil.

Le président: Je vous remercie, chers collégues. Je vous
invite maintenant a4 présenter des noms pour le poste de vice-
président.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Monsieur le président, je propose le
sénateur Corbin pour le poste de vice-président. J’ai appris la
derniére fois que j’ai parlé au leader suppléant qu’il était prét a
servir le comité en qualité de vice-président.

Le président: Je vous remercie, sénateur LeBlanc. S’il n’y a
pas d’autres noms a proposer, je déclare closes les nominations.

Honorables sénateurs, sommes-nous d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Je déclare le sénateur Corbin diment €lu vice-
président.

Je vous invite maintenant & proposer une motion concernant
le quorum du Sous-comité. Celui-ci compte huit membres. Je
suggére qu’on fixe le quorum a quatre. Si les sénateurs sont
d’accord, je les invite 4 proposer une motion en ce sens.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Monsieur le président, je n’ai pas

I’habitude des sous-comités. A-t-on habituellement au moins
un représentant de chaque formation politique?

Le président: Nous pouvons effectivement préciser que les
partis doivent tous étre représentés. La motion peut étre modi-
fiée en ce sens.

Y a-t-il d’autres questions?

Le sénateur Doody: Monsieur le président, est-ce bien huit
membres? Il me semble en voir neuf a I'ordre du jour.

Le président: 11 y a huit membres, plus le sénateur Stewart
qui est membre ex officio, puisqu’il est président du comité
principal.

Le président: S’il n’y a pas d’autres questions, passons au
vote. Honorables sénateurs, étes-vous préts a adopter la
motion?

Des voix: Adoptée.
Le président: Je déclare la motion adoptée.
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[Text]

It is customary to record a motion to the effect that pursu-
ant to rule 90 the chairman be authorized to hold meetings and
to receive and authorize the printing of evidence when a quo-
rum is not present.

Senator Stewart: [ so move, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: We come now to the question of the steering
committee. | invite a motion to the effect that the Subcommit-
tee on Agenda and Procedure be composed of the chairman,
deputy chairman and one other member of the committee to
be designated by the chairman after the usual consultations,
and that the quorum be two.

I have taken the liberty of speaking to Senator Doody and
he has indicated his willingness to act on the steering commit-
tee.

Is there any discussion with respect to this matter?

Senator LeBlanc: May I ask one question, Mr. Chairman?
For example, can the deputy chairman ask another member of
his group to serve when he is absent? I can imagine in some
cases where that may be necessary.

The Chairman: Yes, as a matter of fact it crossed my mind
that with a small subcommittee a steering committee is almost
redundant. However, I see no objection to that proposal.

Senator LeBlanc: There is no theological argument against
it, if it is acceptable, is there?

The Chairman: No. In fact, I think it would be a preferable
arrangement. May | have a motion to that effect?

Senator LeBlanc: | so move.

The Chairman: [s it agreed, honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: The next item is the usual motion with
respect to travelling expenses of witnesses. It is to the effect
that pursuant to rule 103, reasonable travel and living expenses
may be paid to up to three witnesses invited or summoned to
appear before the subcommittee.

Why is it limited to three, Madam Clerk?

The Clerk of the Committee: It is three witnesses per organ-
ization. For example, if some people from National Defence
appear before the committee the expenses of three may be
paid.

The Chairman: [s there any discussion with respect to this
matter?

Senator Doody: How should it read, Mr. Chairman?

The Clerk of the Committee: It should be three witnesses
per organization, or three representatives from an organiza-
tion.

Senator Doody: This matter is pursuant to rule 103. Are we
saying that if the Canadian Armed Forces agree to appear

[Traduction]
La tradition veut qu'on adopte officiellement une motion

permettant au président, conformément a I'article 90 du
Réglement, de tenir des réunions, de recevoir des témoignages
et d’autoriser I'impression du compte rendu en I'absence d’un

quorum.
Le sénateur Stewart: Je le propose, monsieur le président.
Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Nous en arrivons maintenant a la question du
comité directeur. Il me faudrait une motion proposant que le
Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit composé du
président, du vice-président et d’'un autre membre du comité
désigné par le président, aprés les consultations habituelles, et
que le quorum du comité directeur soit fixé a deux membres.

Jai pris la liberté d’en parler au sénateur Doody qui m’a
signalé qu’il était disposé a faire partie du comité directeur.

Quelqu’un souhaite-t-il débattre de la motion?

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Monsieur le président, puis-je poser
une question? Par exemple, le vice-président peut-il demander
a un autre membre de son groupe de le remplacer s’il est
absent? Cela pourrait étre nécessaire a ’occasion.

Le président: Oui, j’ai méme pensé qu'avec un petit sous-
comité, un comité directeur faisait presque double emploi. Je
n’ai cependant aucune objection a ce que vous proposez.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: L’idée n’offense aucun grand principe,
n’est-ce pas?

Le président: Non. Ce serait méme une bonne chose. Puis-je
avoir une motion en ce sens?

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Je la propose.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, la motion est-elle adop-
tée?

Des voix: Adoptée.

Le président: Il faut ensuite adopter la motion habituelle
concernant les frais de déplacement des témoins. Celle-ci pré-
voit que, conformément 4 I'article 103 du Réglement, un maxi-
mum de trois témoins invités a comparaitre devant le Sous-
comité, ou sommeés, pourront obtenir remboursement des frais
de déplacement et d’hébergement raisonnable.

Pourquoi est-ce limité a trois, madame la grefficre?

La greffiére du Comité: Cela veut dire trois témoins par
groupe. Par exemple, si des représentants du ministére de la
Défense nationale souhaitent comparaitre devant le Comité,
celui-ci peut rembourser les frais de trois d’entre eux.

Le président: Y a-t-il des questions a ce propos?

Le sénateur Doody: Comment la motion doit-elle se lire,
monsieur le président?

La greffiéere du Comité: Il faudrait dire trois témoins par
organisation, ou trois représentants d’une organisation.

Le sénateur Doody: C’est une motion qui découle de I'article
103 du Réglement. Cela veut-il dire que si des représentants de
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[Text]

before us we are allowed to pay the expenses of three wit-
nesses, is that it, from the whole organization?

The Chairman: Why is there a limit?

The Clerk of the Committee: I think the Senate has decided
to put a limit on the number of people who may come. For
example, 10 may come but we cannot pay the expenses of all
10.

Senator Doody: | was thinking of different branches of the
Armed Forces, for instance.

The Clerk of the Committee: They are government person-
nel and we do not usually pay their expenses.

Senator Doody: If we do run into a problem, we can change
this.

Senator Stewart: Mr. Chairman, am I correct in thinking
that the same ground rule will apply in this subcommittee as
applies, let us say, generally—if I understand that ground
rule—namely, that we do not pay travelling and living
expenses to any witnesses unless we could not get them to
come without making those payments?

The Chairman: It would make more sense to me if it read
that we would not pay unless specifically authorized to pay by
the committee, and then we could deal with each case that
comes along.

Senator Stewart: Senator Doody is much more familiar with
this than am .

Senator Doody: Senator Balfour is correct. I do not think it
has been the custom of the Senate to volunteer payment of
expenses. However, from time to time the only way you can
get certain witnesses, obviously, is to pay their expenses. Usu-
ally, the expenses are authorized by the steering committee, I
think in consultation with the clerk, or the clerk will say, for
instance, that the Anti-Poverty League wants to appear but
they have no money. We will say, for instance, that we will pay
the expenses of up to three people from that organization.

The Chairman: Yes, that would seem more sensible to me.
Would you care to put that in the form of a motion, senator?

Senator Doody: Sure, if somebody can translate it into read-
able English.

The Chairman: In other words, expenses will be paid when
specifically authorized by the steering committee. Is it agreed,
honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: Carried.

There is the usual motion with respect to the authorization
of accounts to the effect that, pursuant to paragraph 3:05 of
Appendix I11 to the Rules of the Senate, accounts for payment

by the subcommittee be certified by the chairman or the
deputy chairman.

Senator Doody: | so move, Mr. Chairman.

[Traduction)]

Forces armées canadiennes acceptent de comparaitre devant le
Comité, nous pouvons rembourser les frais de trois témoins au
total?

Le président: Pourquoi une telle limite?

La greffiére du Comité: Le Sénat a décidé de limiter le nom-
bre de personnes qui pouvaient représenter une organisation.
Dix personnes pourraient venir, mais nous ne pouvons pas rem-
bourser leurs frais a toutes.

Le sénateur Doody: Je pensais 4 différents corps des Forces
armées, par exemple.

La greffiére du Comiteé: Ils relévent du gouvernement et a ce
titre, nous ne remboursons généralement pas leurs frais.

Le sénateur Doody: Nous pourrons toujours apporter des
changements si nécessaire.

Le sénateur Stewart: Monsieur le président, ai-je raison de
penser que la régle de base qui est appliquée généralement
s’appliquera aussi a ce Sous-comité. Si je I'ai bien comprise,
nous ne remboursons pas les frais de déplacement et d’héberge-
ment des témoins sauf s’il est impossible de les faire venir
autrement?

Le président: Il me semblerait plus logique de dire que les
frais ne seront remboursés que s’ils ont été expressément auto-
risés par le Comité, et puis nous pourrons étudier chaque cas
individuellement.

Le sénateur Stewart: Le sénateur Doody est beaucoup plus
au courant de ces choses-la que moi.

Le sénateur Doody: Le sénateur Balfour a raison. Le Sénat
n’a pas pour habitude de proposer volontairement le rembour-
sement des frais. Toutefois, dans certains cas, il est bien évi-
dent que les témoins ne viendront pas & moins qu’on rembourse
leurs frais. Ceux-ci sont habituellement autorisés par le comité
directeur, aprés consultation avec la greffiere, ou celle-ci pour-
rait nous informer que I’Organisation anti-pauvreté, par exem-
ple, souhaiterait comparaitre, mais n’en a pas les moyens.
Nous pourrions alors accepter de payer les frais de déplace-
ment d’'un maximum de trois représentants de cette organisa-
tion.

Le président: Oui, cela me parait plus logique. Sénateur,
pouvez-vous nous mettre cela sous forme de motion?

Le sénateur Doody: Je veux bien, si quelqu’un peut en faire
quelque chose de lisible.

Le président: Autrement dit, les frais seront remboursés sur
autorisation expresse du comité directeur. Etes-vous d’accord,
honorables sénateurs?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Il y a une autre motion habituelle portant sur I'autorisation
des comptes. Conformément au paragraphe 3:05 de
I’Annexe III du Reglement du Sénat, les comptes d payer du
sous-comité doivent étre approuvés par le président ou le vice-
président.

Le sénateur Doody: Je le propose, monsieur le président.
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The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: Carried.

There is now for your consideration, honourable senators,
the usual motion to print the committee’s proceedings. The
suggestion is that 500 copies be printed for distribution.

Senator LeBlanc: May I ask a question on that matter, Mr.
Chairman? We have been trying to reduce the number of first
printings for some time now. Obviously, if the matrix which is
used in the printing is kept—in other words, if the whole works
do not have to be redone—and if a couple hundred more copies
are needed, then 200 or 300 more copies could be produced
with ease. I suggest that we look at printing a slightly smaller
number, perhaps 300 or 400. This is in order to keep going a
trend which is to reduce the amount of printing that we do. A
great deal of this printed matter piles up on shelves because
people do not want to bother reading certain items.

I do not know what other subcommittees or committees
decide on this issue, but I put that question so as not to have an
abundance of unused material.

The Chairman: | wonder what the difference in cost is
between 500 and 200 copies.

Senator LeBlanc: [ have no problem with the principle here.
The Chairman: I follow your argument and I agree with it.

Senator Doody: It is the number multiplied by the total
number of committees which adds up. If we do not need 500,
we do not have to print 500. It may be that we now have a
mailing list of 500, although I doubt it.

Senator Marshall: I have been to three organizational meet-
ings and the same thing has come up each time. There are 292
Members of Parliament and 104 senators who receive copies
automatically. That is 396 copies.

Senator Doody: With respect, I do not think that is true in
all cases, Senator Marshall. | think that a form letter is sent to
all Members of Parliament asking if they want to receive a
copy of the proceeding. Those senators who want them signify
that they want them. They are not automatically sent any
more.

Senator Marshall: What if they all want them?

Senator Doody: Then we would have to print them. There is
no use printing them on the assumption that they will want
them. I do not receive the minutes of every committee that sits.
It is just a waste of paper. I cannot read it all. All these extra
copies just pile up. If it can be demonstrated that they need
500, 600 or 800, then we will print them.

Senator Marshall: The practice over the years has been to
print this number of copies. Why all of a sudden is everyone
starting to get economic? Do we want to show people what we
are doing, or do we want to hide, as we have been doing, and
get criticized all over the place? If you read the results of what

[Traduction]

Le président: Adoptez-vous la motion, honorables séna-
teurs?

Des voix: Adoptée.
Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Honorables sénateurs, nous devons maintenant considérer
une motion, habituelle elle aussi, permettant de faire imprimer
le compte rendu du Comité. On propose d’en faire imprimer
500 exemplaires.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Puis-je poser une question a ce propos,
monsieur le président? Depuis un certain temps déja, nous
essayons de réduire le nombre d’exemplaires de la premiére
édition. De toute évidence, si on garde les galées—c’est-a-dire
s’il ne faut pas recommencer de zéro, on peut facilement faire
un tirage de 200 ou 300 exemplaires si nécessaire. Je propose-
rais qu’on réduise légérement le nombre d’exemplaires a faire
imprimer 4 300 ou 400. Ceci afin d’encourager la tendance a
réduire le nombre de fascicules imprimés, qui trop souvent
finissent sur des étagéres, parce qu’ils n’intéressent personne.

Je ne sais pas ce qu'ont décidé les autres sous-comités ou
comités sur ce point, mais je souléve la question car je ne vou-
drais pas que nous ayons un excédent de matériel inutilisé.

Le président: Je me demande quelle différence de cout il
peut y avoir entre 500 et 200 exemplaires.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Je n’ai rien contre le principe.

Le président: Je comprends votre raisonnement, et je
I'approuve.

Le sénateur Doody: Quand on multiplie par le nombre de
comités, cela finit par compter. Si nous n’avons pas besoin de
500 exemplaires, ne les imprimons pas. Nous avons peut-étre
une liste d’envoi de 500 personnes, mais j’en doute.

Le sénateur Marshall: J’ai participé a trois séances d’organi-
sation, et la question s’est posée chaque fois. I y a 292 députés
et 104 sénateurs qui regoivent automatiquement un exem-
plaire. Cela fait donc 396.

Le sénateur Doody: Sauf votre respect, sénateur Marshall,
je ne pense pas que ce soit toujours le cas. Je crois qu’on envoie
a4 chaque membre du Parlement une lettre circulaire lui
demandant s’il souhaite recevoir un exemplaire du compte
rendu. Les sénateurs intéressés répondent par 'affirmative. Ca
n’est plus automatique.

Le sénateur Marshall: Et s’ils en veulent tous?

Le sénateur Doody: Il faudra alors les faire imprimer. Mais
ce n’est pas la peine de le faire en présumant que tout le monde
en voudra. Je ne recois pas les comptes rendus de tous les
comités qui siegent. C’est un gaspillage de papier. Je ne peux
pas les lire tous. Ils ne font que s’entasser. Si nous avons effec-
tivement besoin de 500, 600 ou 800 exemplaires, nous les
ferons imprimer.

Le sénateur Marshall: Depuis des années on fait imprimer le
méme nombre d’exemplaires. D’ou vient cette soudaine manie
d’économie? Voulons-nous que les gens sachent ce que nous
faisons, ou voulons-nous nous cacher, comme nous |’avons fait
jusqu’ici, pour qu'on puisse nous critiquer partout? Si vous
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was produced by the National Defence Committee, you would
see that people are still asking for copies of the reports.

Senator Doody: We are not talking about reports here.

Senator Marshall: Certain individuals want the proceedings,
but I will not argue about it because I could care less now.

It has always been 1,000 and 1,500, and now all of a sudden
it is 500 and we are worrying about the few extra cents it will
cost.

The Chairman: | suspect that the difference in cost between
300 and 500 is insignificant, but that is just a guess.

Senator Doody: | make the point again that there is a differ-
ence in cost between 300 and 500 not only for this committee,
but for the 12 or 15 committees in this place. If you multiply
200 by 15 you have something that could very well be of sig-
nificance. Yet, if nobody cares about it, then let it go.

The Chairman: | am in the hands of the committee.
Senator Marshall: [ move that we have 500 copies printed.

The Chairman: [s there any further discussion?

Senator Doody: | simply want to ask once again that Mem-
bers of Parliament who want to receive the minutes be asked if
they want to receive it.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: Carried.

The next item deals with retaining the services of the Parlia-
mentary Centre for Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade as an
advisor to the subcommittee, and that the chairman on behalf
of the subcommittee direct the research staff in the prepara-
tion of studies, analyses and summaries.

May I have a motion to that effect?

Senator LeBlanc: Mr. Chairman, perhaps because 1 sit on
the other committee before which the same group appears time
after time, I would like to hear the view of members of the
committee as to why we should follow this route again. Should
we not try to find a bit of variation? I have no inimical senti-
ments, except that whenever this comes to the budget commit-

tee of Ir}tcrnal we are really asked to justify this request, or to
explain it.

The Chairman: If I could speak to that question, I served on
the subcommittee under Senator Lafond and under Senator
Hicks, and the Parliamentary Centre was retained in each
case. | think it is fair to say that they have developed a certain
degree of expertise in this area. They have excellent lines of
communication with DND HQ. As far as I am concerned, they
would be the choice that I would favour. I know the argument
is that the Parliamentary Library is available. There is also the
argument that it is free, but it is not free at all. There is an
expense either way we go. Personally, I am comfortable with

[Traduction]

lisez les rapports qu’a produits le Comité de la défense natio-
nale, vous pouvez vous rendre compte que les gens en deman-
dent des copies.

Le sénateur Doody: Il ne s’agit pas de rapports.

Le sénateur Marshall: Certains souhaitent également obte-
nir les comptes rendus, mais je ne vous contredirai pas, car
tout cela ne m’intéresse plus.

On en a toujours imprimé entre 1 000 et 1 500, et tout a
coup on tombe a 500, et on s’inquicte des quelques sous de plus
que cela pourrait colter.

Le président: J'imagine que la différence de coiit entre
I'impression de 300 ou 500 exemplaires doit étre minime, mais
je n’en suis pas sir.

Le sénateur Doody: Je persiste a dire qu’il y a effectivement
une différence de colt entre I'impression de 300 ou de 500
exemplaires, non seulement pour notre comité, mais multiplié
par les 12 ou 15 comités qui siégent au Sénat. Multipliez 200
par 15, et cela donne un chiffre important. Mais si cela vous
est égal, allez-y.

Le président: Je m’en remets a votre décision.

Le sénateur Marshall: Je propose que I'on fasse imprimer
500 exemplaires.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres commentaires?

Le sénateur Doody: Je tiens simplement & proposer encore
une fois que I'on demande aux membres du Parlement de faire
savoir s’ils souhaitent recevoir un exemplaire du compte rendu.

Le président: Est-ce entendu, honorables sénateurs?
Des voix: Entendu.

Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Le point suivant concerne les services consultatifs du Centre
parlementaire pour les affaires étrangéres et le commerce exté-
rieur, et prévoit que le président, au nom du Sous-comité,
donne les instructions nécessaires aux attachés de recherche
pour la réalisation des études, analyses et sommaires.

Puis-je avoir une motion en ce sens?

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Monsieur le président, c’est peut-étre
parce que je suis aussi membre de 'autre comité devant lequel
ce groupe comparait réguliérement, mais j'aimerais savoir si
les membres de ce Comité pensent que nous devions continuer
cette tradition. Pourquoi ne pas essayer autre chose? Je n'ai
rien contre ce groupe, mais chaque fois qu'il faut défendre
cette rubrique du budget devant le Comité de la Régie interne,
on nous demande des explications.

Le président: Si vous me permettez de dire quelques mots,
j'ai siégé au Sous-comité sous la présidence du sénateur
Lafond et du sénateur Hicks, et dans les deux cas on a retenu
les services du Centre parlementaire. On peut dire qu'il a
atteint un certain niveau de compétence dans ce domaine. Le
Centre a en outre d’excellents contacts au quartier général de
la Défense nationale. C'est vers eux que va ma préférence. Je
sais qu’on peut faire appel a la Bibliothéque du Parlement. On
dit aussi que ses services sont gratuits, mais ce n’est pas du
tout vrai. Il y a des frais, quelle que soit I'option retenue. Per-
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the people at the Parliamentary Centre, but I am in the hands
of the committee.

Senator LeBlanc: If we are going to discuss this in sub-
stance, | would move that we have a closed meeting of senators
only. Again, | have no conspiracy theory of any kind but I
always feel that there should be a variation of advice and input
into committees. That is the issue that I would want to discuss.

Senator Marshall: Mr. Chairman, there is a certain positive
action of the Library. In some cases, you can get someone
within the Library of Parliament who is excellent. The exam-
ple is the fisheries where we had Claude Emery from the
Library. His assistance was excellent. He has a photographic
mind and could pick out things at a moment’s notice. You need
to have the right person there. Certainly the defence commit-
tee is a good example of where you need expert people on the
staff. I would look at it from that point of view. I know the
Parliamentary Centre is very expensive, but I can concur with
what you are saying in that they certainly did a great job for
the committee.

The Chairman: Senator LeBlanc has requested a closed
meeting to discuss this matter.

Senator LeBlanc: That is because I do not want to reflect
negatively on the group. My comments have nothing to do
with the quality and the virtues of the group. I want that to be
very clear. But we must ask ourselves before we start, do we
want to have another light of the spectrum? It does not mean
that they will not do any of the work, but I always have a prob-
lem if we only have one source of information.

The Chairman: This motion does not preclude us from going
to other sources down the road. Perhaps this would be an
appropriate time for me to advise the committee that, in antici-
pation of events, | had retained the Parliamentary Centre on
my own discretionary budget to do some preliminary work.

There has been distributed to honourable senators a draft
outline for a potential Senate study which was prepared by the
Parliamentary Centre, by Greg Werk. You have hardly had a
chance to look at this. Perhaps we should defer this item for a
subsequent meeting when we could both meet Senator
LeBlanc’s request for a closed discussion concerning the mat-
ter and also senators would have had an opportunity to con-
sider my proposal. Would that be an appropriate way to pro-
ceed?

Some Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: That being the case, I think we should defer
item 10. Could we possibly arrange a meeting for tomorrow at
1:30 p.m.? It would not have to be a lengthy meeting. It would
be an in camera meeting, senators only, where we would con-
sider item 10 and the draft proposal.

Senator Stewart: Mr. Chairman, may I ask, what informa-

tion on this point is the committee likely to have tomorrow that
it does not have now?

The Chairman: | am quite prepared to proceed now if every-
one is agreeable.

[Traduction]

sonnellement, je me sens a I'aise avec les gens du Centre parle-
mentaire, mais je m’en remets a la décision du Comité.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Si nous devons débattre du fond de la
question, je propose que nous tenions une réunion a huis clos,
entre sénateurs seulement. Il ne faut pas voir la de conspira-
tion, mais j'estime qu’il serait bon que les comités aient une
autre source de conseils et d'information. C’est de cela que je
voudrais que nous parlions.

Le sénateur Marshall: Monsieur le président, il y a certaine-
ment des aspects trés positifs a la Bibliothéque. Dans certains
cas, on peut y trouver des personnes fort compétentes. Je songe
notamment 4 Claude Emery, qui était venu de la Bibliothéque
pour notre étude sur les pécheries. Il a fait un excellent travail.
I avait un esprit photographique, et comprenait les choses a
demi-mot. Il s’agit de trouver la bonne personne. Au Comité
de la défense, il est certain qu'il faut avoir des experts. Ce
serait mon point de vue. Je sais que le Centre parlementaire
colite cher, mais j'abonde dans votre sens pour dire qu’il a fait
un excellent travail pour notre comité.

Le président: Le sénateur LeBlanc avait demandé que la
question soit débattue a huis clos.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: C’est que je ne voudrais pas que mes
propos soit interprétés comme une critique du Centre. Mes
commentaires n’ont rien a voir avec les qualités ou ses vertus
du groupe, soyons clairs. Mais avant de nous lancer dans nos
travaux, il serait bon de nous demander si nous ne voulons pas
un éclairage un peu différent de la question. Je ne propose pas
d’exclure le Centre entiérement, mais cela me géne de n’avoir
qu’une source d’information.

Le président: La motion ne nous empéche pas de faire appel
a d’autres sources. Le moment est peut-étre venu d’informer le
Comité que, en prévision des événements, j'avais retenu les ser-
vices du Centre parlementaire, 8 méme mon budget discrétion-
naire, pour certains travaux préliminaires.

Les honorables sénateurs ont recu un projet d’étude que
pourrait mener le Sénat, préparé par Greg Werk, du Centre
parlementaire. Vous n’avez pas eu I'occasion d’en prendre con-
naissance. Peut-étre devrions-nous reporter la question a notre
prochaine réunion, et nous pourrons alors répondre au désir du
sénateur LeBlanc en tenant la réunion a huis clos, et donner en
méme temps aux sénateurs la possibilité d’examiner ma propo-
sition. Cela vous convient-il?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Dans ce cas, je propose que nous reportions le
point 10. Pourrions-nous nous réunir demain a 13 h 30, bri¢-
vement? La réunion aurait lieu a huis clos, entre sénateurs seu-
lement, et nous examinerions le point 10 de I'ordre du jour
ainsi que I’ébauche de proposition.

Le sénateur Stewart: Monsieur le président, quelles infor-
mations aurons-nous demain que nous ignorons encore
aujourd’hui?

Le président: Si vous étes tous d’accord, parlons-en dés
maintenant.
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Senator Doody: Fine with me.

The Chairman: First of all, I have a motion from Senator
Doody moving item 10.

Senator Doody: That is on the table for discussion. The
question is do we want to discuss it publicly? Senator LeBlanc
would prefer to do it privately, with senators only. I have no
problem with that.

Senator Stewart: Is the problem a technical one, that we
must call a meeting advertised as in camera so as to discuss the
future work of the committee? We cannot now proceed to an
in camera discussion of this item?

Senator Doody: I think we can.

The Chairman: | do not see why not. Perhaps Senator
LeBlanc could move that the committee be constituted as an in
camera meeting.

Senator LeBlanc: Yes, with senators only. I so move.

The committee continued in camera.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Doody: Cela me convient.

Le président: Tout d’abord, j'ai une motion du sénateur
Doody proposant la discussion du point 10.

Le sénateur Doody: Nous pouvons commencer la discussion.
Mais souhaitons-nous le faire en public? Le sénateur LeBlanc
préférerait que nous en discutions entre sénateurs seulement.
Je n’y vois aucun inconvénient.

Le sénateur Stewart: Sommes-nous tenus d’annoncer que le
comité tiendra séance a huis clos pour parler de ses travaux
futurs? Ne pouvons-nous pas passer a huis clos maintenant?

Le sénateur Doody: Je crois que nous le pouvons.

Le président: Je ne vois pas pourquoi ce ne serait pas possi-
ble. Le sénateur LeBlanc pourrait peut-étre présenter une
motion.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Oui, en la présence des sénateurs seu-
lement. Je le propose.

La réunion se poursuit a huis clos.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE ORDRES DE RENVOI
Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Extrait des Proces-verbaux du Sénat du mardi 18 février
Tuesday, February 18, 1992: 1592

“Resuming the debate on the motion of the Honourable
Senator Stewart, seconded by the Honourable Senator
MacDonald (Halifax):

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to hear evidence and to examine
and report on matters relating to national security and
defence and the future roles of Canada’s armed forces;

That the membership of the Senate Committee on For-
eign Affairs be increased to twenty (20) members and
that Rule 87(1)(k) be suspended in relation thereto; and

That the Committee present its report no later than
March 31, 1993.

After debate,
The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.”

«Reprise du débat sur la motion de I’honorable sénateur
Stewart, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur MacDonald
(Halifax):

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étran-
géres soit autorisé 4 entendre des témoignages et & exami-
ner, pour en faire rapport, des questions ayant trait a la
sécurité et 4 la défense nationale ainsi qu’au rdle que les
Forces armées canadiennes seront appelées a jouer dans
I’avenir;

Que la composition du comité sénatorial permanent des
affaires étrangéres soit augmentée a vingt (20) membres
et que l'application de I'article 87(1)k) soit suspendue a
cet égard; et

Que le Comité présente son rapport au plus tard le 31
mars 1993.

Apres débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Gordon L. Barnhart
Clerk of the Senate

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Stand- Extrait des Proces-verbaux du Comité sénatorial perma-

ing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs, Tuesday, March nent
31, 1992:

“Pursuant to Role 97(4) of the Rules of the Senate, the
Honourable Senator Roblin moved—

That a Subcommittee of the Standing Senate Commit-
tee on Foreign Affairs, to be known as the Subcommittee
on Security and National Defence, be appointed;

That the Subcommittee be authorized to hear evidence
and to examine and report on matters relating to national
security and defence and the future roles of Canada’s
armed forces; and

That the Subcommittee be composed of the Honour-
able Senators Balfour, Cools, Corbin, Doody, LeBlanc
(Beauséjour), Marshall, Meighen, Phillips and the Chair-
man of the Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs ex
officio.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

des Affaires étrangeres, le mardi 31 mars 1992:

\

«Conformément a larticle 97(4) du Reéglement du
Sénat, ’honorable sénateur Roblin propose—

Que soit créé un sous-comité du comité sénatorial per-
manent des affaires étrangeéres qui porterait le nom de
sous-comité sur la sécurité et la défense nationale;

Que le sous-comité soit autorisé a entendre des témoi-
gnages et 4 examiner, pour en faire rapport, des questions
ayant trait a la sécurité et 4 la défense nationales ainsi
qu’aux roles que les Forces armées canadiennes seront
appelées a jouer dans I'avenir; et

Que le sous-comité soit composé des honorables séna-
teurs Balfour, Cools, Corbin, Doody, LeBlanc (Beausé-
jour), Marshall, Meighen, Phillips et le président du
comité sénatorial des Affaires étrangéres membre

d’office.

La question, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Comité

Line Gravel

Clerk of the Committee
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The Subcommittee on Security and National Defence of the
Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at 11:00
a.m. this day, the Chairman, the Honourable Senator James
Balfour, presiding.

Members of the Subcommittee present: The Honourable
Senators Balfour, Cools, Corbin, LeBlanc, Meighen and Mol-
gat. (6)

In Attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Gregory Wirick, Principal
Advisor to the Subcommittee.

Also in attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.

The Subcommittee, in compliance with its Order of Refer-
ence dated March 31, 1992, continued its study of matters
relating to national security and defence and the future roles of
Canada’s armed forces.

The Subcommittee discussed a time slot for its weekly meet-
ings. It was Agreed to hold meetings on Tuesday mornings and
allow the Chairman to decide the time and room, after the
usual consultations as to the availability of Committee rooms.

The question of travel by the Subcommittee to the United
Nations in New York City, on June 23-25, 1992 was dis-
cussed. The matter was Agreed to, in principle, and it was left
to the Chairman to chose alternative dates in the event there
would be conflict with the above dates.

The proposed programme of work was circulated and dis-
cussed. Suggestions for change were made. It was concluded
that the programme could be amended as warranted.

A draft Budget was circulated.

After discussion, the Honourable Senator Corbin moved,—
That this Subcommittee concur in the following Budget
application for the purpose of its consideration of matters
relating to national security and defence and the future roles of
Canada’s armed forces, and that the Chairman, or his repre-
sentative, submit the said Budget to the Standing Committee
on Foreign Affairs for approval:

Professional and special services $90,744.50
Transport and communications $ 1,100.00
All other expenses $ 2,500.00

TOTAL $94,344.50

The questipn being put on the said motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

A draft letter addressed to General A.J.G.D. de Chastelain,
Chief of Staff of the Department of National Defence was cir-
culated. After discussion, it was Agreed the letter should be
sent, with the proviso that the Chairman talk to him personally
when making the arrangement for the informal luncheon, and
point out to him that his remarks during the luncheon would
be off the record.

PROCES-VERBAL

LE MARDI 5 MAI 1992

[Traduction]

Le Sous-comité de la sécurité et de la défense nationale du
Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangéres se réunit
11 heures aujourd’hui sous la présidence de I’honorable séna-
teur James Balfour (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs Bal-
four, Cools, Corbin, LeBlanc, Meighen et Molgat. (6)

Présent: Du Centre parlementaire pour les affaires étrange-
res et le commerce extérieur: M. Gregory Wirick, conseiller
principal du Sous-comité.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Le Sous-comité conformément a4 son ordre de renvoi du
31 mars 1992, poursuit son étude de questions relatives a la
sécurité nationale et 4 la défense et aux roles futurs des Forces
armées du Canada.

Le Sous-comité discute du calendrier de ses réunions hebdo-
madaires. Il est convenu de tenir des réunions les mardis matin
et de permettre au président de choisir I'heure et la salle avec
les consultations habituelles sur la disponibilité des salles de
comité.

On discute de la question du déplacement par le Sous-
comité aux Nations Unis 4 New York du 23 au 25 juin 1992.
La question est convenue en principe et il est laissé au prési-
dent de choisir d’autres dates au cas ou celles ci-dessus ne con-

- viendraient pas.

On distribue et on discute le calendrier des travaux proposé.
Des suggestions de changement sont faites. On conclut que le
calendrier peut étre modifié selon les besoins.

On distribue un projet de budget.

Aprés discussion, I’honorable sénateur Corbin propose,—
Que le Sous-comité souscrive 4 la demande de budget ci-des-
sous aux fins de son étude de questions relatives a la sécurité
nationale et a la défense et aux réles futurs des Forces armées
du Canada et que le président, ou son représentant, soumette
ledit budget au Comité permanent des affaires étrangéres pour
approbation:

Services professionnels et spéciaux 90 744,50 §
Transport et Communications 1 100,00 $
Toutes dutres dépenses 2 500,00 $

TOTAL 94 344,50 $

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Un projet de lettre adressé au général A.J.G.D. de Chaste-
lain, chef d’état-major de la Défense nationale est distribué.
Aprés discussion, il est convenu que la lettre sera expédiée, a
condition que le président lui parle personnellement en prenant
les dispositions nécessaires pour le déjeuner non officiel et lui
signale que les remarques qu'il fera pendant ce déjeuner
n’auront aucun caractére officiel.
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The Chairman said that he had received an excellent letter Le président dit avoir recu une excellente lettre du sénateur
from Senator Molgat regarding the work of the Subcommittee. ~Molgat concernant les travaux du Sous-comité. On demande
Permission was requested and received from Senator Molgat, I’autorisation, que donne le sénateur Molgat, de la distribuer &

to circulate it to all members of the Subcommittee.

tous les membres du Sous-comité.

At 11:40 a.m., the Subcommittee adjourned to the call of A 11 h 40, le Sous-comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convo-

the Chair.
ATTEST:

cation du président.
ATTESTE:
Le greffier du Comité
Patrick J. Savoie
Clerk of the Subcommittee
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Ottawa, Tuesday, May 5, 1992

[Text]

The Sub-committee on Security and National Defence of
the Standing Committee on Foreign Affairs, met this day at
11:00 a.m. to consider future business of the committee.

Senator R. James Balfour (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable Senators, the first item I have
on the agenda is choosing a time slot for our meetings. I would
like to get the views of committee members with respect to the
suggestions that were made, one suggestion being that we
would meet on Monday afternoon, which may cause some
senators some difficulty. The other suggestion is that we would
meet Tuesday evening, after dinner, or possibly through dinner
and after dinner. Does anyone have any strong feelings with
respect to either of those? My own preference is Monday, but I
am not sure that that would be very popular with everyone.

Senator LeBlanc: 1 would prefer early Tuesday morning.
That spot used to be occupied by Internal. We tend to get here
on Monday night, but I expect that experience differs depend-
ing upon where you live.

The Chairman: Tuesday morning would be fine with me.

Senator LeBlanc: If it is a question of availability of rooms,
there is a little committee room in the same corridor as the
barber shop which would be very useful for this size of group.

Senator Corbin: It cannot accommodate too many visitors or
witnesses, but it is ventilated. I personally prefer Tuesday
mornings. Monday is a day of travel.

Senator Molgat: I may not be a regular member of the com-
mittee.

The Chairman: We would like your view, in any event.

Senator Molgat: [ hesitate to be expressing opinions which
will affect other people more than me. I find I have to be here
now on Monday in any case, so Monday afternoon is no prob-
lem as far as I am concerned. Tuesday morning would prob-
ably suit because, I agree with Senator Corbin, Monday is
when people who are far from Ottawa travel. To be here on
Monday means that we have to leave on Sunday, which is a
factor. However, if there is a time slot available to us on Tues-

day morning, I think that is likely the one that would receive
the broadest support.

Senator Meighen: I do not know how good my attendance
will be, but Tuesday certainly is preferable.

The Chairman: Is there any reason why we could not be

léslingkthe new committee room on the first floor of the Centre
ock?

Mr. Patrick Savoie, Clerk of the Committee: It is not
equipped for interpretation yet.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 5 mai 1992

[Traduction]

Le Sous-comité sénatorial de la sécurité et de la défense
défense nationale du Comité permanent des affaires étrangéres
se réunit aujourd’hui a4 11 heures pour examiner ses travaux a
venir.

Le sénateur R. James Balfour (président) occupe le fau-
teuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, le premier point a
I’ordre du jour est le choix d’une journée et d’une heure pour
nos réunions. J'aimerais savoir ce que pensent les membres du
Comité des suggestions qui ont été faites, notamment de celle
prévoyant la tenue de nos réunions le lundi aprés-midi, ce qui
risque de causer des difficultés a certains sénateurs. D’autres
ont suggéré que nous nous réunissions le mardi soir, aprés le
souper, ou encore durant et apreés le souper. Qu’est-ce que vous
pensez de I'une ou 'autre des suggestions? Je préfére le lundi,
mais je ne suis pas certain que tout le monde serait d’accord.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Je préférerais tot le mardi matin, mais
ce créneau était habituellement réservé au Comité de la régie
interne. Nous arrivons 4 Ottawa le lundi soir en général, mais
je suppose que cela dépend d’ou on habite.

Le président: Le mardi matin me conviendrait.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: S’il s’agit d’'une question de disponibi-
lité de salles, il y en a une petite dans le méme corridor que le
salon de coiffure, qui pourrait étre trés utile pour un comité de
la taille du nétre.

Le sénateur Corbin: Cette salle ne peut pas accueillir un trés
grand nombre de visiteurs ou de témoins, mais elle est climati-
sée. Personnellement, je préfére le mardi matin, le lundi étant
réservé aux déplacements.

Le sénateur Molgat: Je n’assisterai peut-étre pas réguliére-
ment aux réunions du Comité.

Le président: Nous voulons quand méme savoir ce que vous
en pensez.

Le sénateur Molgat: J'hésite 4 donner une opinion qui aura
plus de poids sur les autres que sur moi. Je dois maintenant
étre ici le lundi de toute fagon, donc pour moi, les réunions le
lundi aprés-midi me vont. Le mardi matin conviendrait proba-
blement aussi parce que, comme le disait le sénateur Corbin, le
lundi, les gens de I’extérieur rentrent 4 Ottawa. Pour étre ici le
lundi, cela veut dire qu'’il faut quitter le dimanche, ce qui est
un facteur a considérer. Cependant, si une plage fixe peut nous
étre réservée le mardi matin, je pense que c’est cette période
qui conviendrait le mieux a tout le monde.

Le sénateur Meighen: Je ne sais pas si je serai présent tres
souvent, mais le mardi est certainement préférable pour moi.

Le président: Est-ce qu’il y a une raison pour laquelle on ne
peut pas utiliser la nouvelle salle de réunion des comités au
premier étage de I'édifice du Centre?

M. Patrick Savoie, greffier du Comité: Elle n’est pas encore
équipée pour assurer les services d’interprétation.
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[Text]
Senator LeBlanc: Surely that is a mechanical matter that

can be solved in a week. I am told the equipment has been
ordered.

Mr. Savoie: I will pass on the request.

The Chairman: Would it be satisfactory if we agreed to have
the meeting on Tuesday morning and leave it with me to pur-
sue with the clerk the availability of rooms? Is 9:30 okay?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chairman: The next item is the visit to the United
Nations? The idea is to have a general discussion. We are ten-
tatively planning June 24 and 25 as possible dates for that trip.
Does any committee member have any problem with respect to
those dates? Can we proceed with our planning on that basis?

Senator LeBlanc: June 24 is not a propitious day for anyone
who is associated with Quebec generally. It is St. Jean Baptiste
Day.

The Chairman: Is that a problem so far as you are con-
cerned personally?

Senator LeBlanc: Not personally, no. The Acadians arrived
before the Quebeckers did.

Senator Molgat: Would we be subject to criticism from
some of our Quebec colleagues? For my province it is not that
big a factor.

The Chairman: I do not think we are interfering with their
celebration. We have no committee member from Quebec who
would be affected.

Senator Corbin: I have no objection.

Senator LeBlanc: Is the Canadian system at the U.N. func-
tioning on June 24, or is that a legal holiday?

The Chairman: I cannot answer that. We could easily check
that. I assume they would be.

. Senator Molgat: The alternative would be to do it on the
Thursday and Friday.

The Chairman: I have a problem with Friday. I have to be in
Vancouver. Once again, would the committee be content to
leave the matter with me to try to sort out? We have to check
the availability of U.N. people as well, but I think we have to
start planning now.

You have had circulated to you the proposed program of
work. Does anyone have any problems with respect to that?
Again, this is going to have to be subject to adjustment. For
example, under the first item we have Colonel Ethell listed. I
understand he is in Europe but will be back later in the month
or in June. It may be that we would move him to section 5,
Canada’s Future Role in Peacekeeping. I am led to believe
that he is an extremely knowledgeable individual and is about
to retire, but has had considerable hands-on experience with
respect to peacekeeping activities for many years. he is obvi-
ously an important witness for us. But again, some of you may
have suggestions to make which we should accommodate.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Il s’agit la d’un probléme technique
qui peut se régler en une semaine. On me dit que le matériel a
été commandé.

M. Savoie: Je vais transmettre la demande.

Le président: Seriez-vous d’accord pour que les réunions
aient lieu le mardi matin et que j’examine la question de la dis-
ponibilité des salles avec le greffier? Est-ce que 9 h 30 vous
convient?

Des voix: Oui.

Le président: Le deuxieéme point est la visite aux Nations
Unies. Nous voulons simplement en discuter ensemble. Nous
prévoyons faire ce voyage les 24 et 25 juin. Cela vous convient-
il? Pouvons-nous entreprendre la planification de cette visite
en fonction de ces dates?

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Le 24 juin n’est pas trés propice pour
les Québécois. C’est la féte de la Saint-Jean Baptiste.

Le président: Est-ce un probléme pour vous personnelle-
ment?

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Non, pas pour moi. Les Acadiens
étaient 1a avant les Québécois.

Le sénateur Molgat: Risquons-nous d’étre critiqués par cer-
tains de nos collégues du Québec? En ce qui concerne ma pro-
vince, cela ne pose pas trop de difficultés.

Le président: Je ne crois pas que notre voyage vienne pertur-
ber les fétes. Aucun membre québécois du Comité ne serait
touché.

Le sénateur Corbin: Je n’ai pas d’objection.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Les membres de la délégation cana-
dienne a I'ONU travaillent-ils le 24 juin ou si c’est un jour
férié?

Le président: Je ne sais pas. C’est facile a vérifier, je pense
qu’ils travaillent.

Le sénateur Molgat: L’autre possibilité serait d’aller & New
York le jeudi et le vendredi.

Le président: Je ne peux pas le vendredi, je dois étre a Van-
couver. La encore, accepteriez-vous que je m’occupe de cette
question pour essayer d’y trouver une solution? Il nous faut
voir si les gens de 'ONU sont disponibles, mais je pense que
nous devons commencer a planifier notre voyage dés mainte-
nant.

On vous a remis le Programme de travail envisagé. Est-ce
que tout le monde est d’accord? La encore, des ajustements
sont a prévoir. Par exemple, au premier point, on donne le nom
du Colonel Don Ethell. Je crois savoir qu’il est en Europe et
qu’il sera de retour vers la fin du mois ou en juin. Peut-étre lui
demanderons-nous de venir témoigner sur la question figurant
au point 5 intitulée «Futur role du Canada dans les activités
de maintien de la paix». Je crois savoir que le Colonel connait
extrémement bien la question et qu'il est sur le point de
prendre sa retraite, mais qu’il posséde une grande expérience
pratique en ce qui touche le maintien de la paix depuis nombre
d’années. Il s’agit sans doute d’un témoin important pour nous.
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Senator LeBlanc: | have no names to suggest but I was look-
ing at the list of possible witnesses. It is very heavily loaded
with what I would call U.N. buffs. I have no problems with
that except I think it would be useful to have another sound of
the bell by perhaps having someone who is known to have
pretty critical views, not of the ideal of peacekeeping, but of
the techniques and the actual carrying out of it.

I am thinking of 30 years in Cyprus. I do not know if anyone
can honestly defend a nation the size of Canada spending 30
years in Cyprus. Surely there must be some sceptics on why
this was allowed to drag on. I personally did not come to this
committee to be brainwashed, any more than we are, by the
official line everywhere. I do not mean the official line of the
government. I mean the official line of the U.N. buffs. I think
we should try to find at least some skeptics, or one, if there is
one. There must be one somewhere.

Senator Meighen: I understand the minister herself is a
skeptic of Cyprus.

The Chairman: There has been lots of criticism of Cyprus,
for the reason you have identified.

Senator LeBlanc: It is only one example, and it is probably
the worst. I do not know if we are still in the Punjab and other
esoteric places. In other words, my worry is that the U.N.
bureaucracy carries a lot of weight in some of these things, and
because they cannot find an agreement amongst the nationali-
ties they end up prolonging the debate, the issue and the situa-
tion forever and ever. That is my point.

The Chairman: One value of making a trip to the U.N.
would be to ask some pointed questions along the lines that
you have identified. Perhaps the Parliamentary Centre could
give that some thought and see if we cannot identify other
points of view.

Mr. Gregory Wirick, Associate, Parliamentary Centre for
Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade: May I make one quick
suggestion? It occurs to me that in that very first week, back
from Cyprus and critical of it, is the former commander of the
entire operation there, General Clive Millner, who has retired
to Kingston. I know he is critical of the operation. He might be
very appropriate. He has also served in other peacekeeping
missions so he has a fairly objective view, but he is very critical
of the Cyprus experience. I was even wondering if he might be
more appropriate than General Maclnnis. At least we could
bring him in at some point.

The Chairman: We might bring him in place of Colonel
Ethell because I am almost certain he will not be available.

Senato!' Le.B.Ianc: 1 do not particularly want to hear some-
one who is critical of the actual operation. I suspect that they

[Traduction)]

Mais peut-étre certains d’entre vous ont-ils des suggestions que
nous pourrions examiner.

.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Je n’ai pas de noms a proposer, je
regardais la liste des témoins possibles. Elle renferme beau-
coup de «emordus» de 'ONU, comme je les appelle. Je n’ai rien
contre ces personnes, sauf que selon moi, il serait utile d’enten-
dre un autre son de cloche, peut-étre de quelqu’un qui a une
opinion critique reconnue, non pas quelqu’un qui va nous par-
ler de I'idéal du maintien de la paix mais des questions techni-
ques et de la mission méme.

Je pense aux trente années a Chypre. Je ne sais pas si
quelqu’un peut honnétement défendre un pays de la taille du
Canada apreés avoir passé 30 ans Chypre. Je suis sir que cer-
tains se demandent pourquoi on a permis que cette opération
dure aussi longtemps. Je n’ai pas accepté de faire partie du
Comité pour me faire bourrer le crane de toutes sortes de cho-
ses, du moins pas plus que par les discours officiels. Je ne parle
pas des autorités gouvernementales. Je parle des ardents défen-
seurs de ’'ONU. Je pense que nous devrions essayer de trouver
quelqu’un qui remet les choses en question. Il doit y en avoir
un quelque part.

Le sénateur Meighen: Je pense que la ministre méme doute
de I'utilité de la mission a Chypre.

Le président: Beaucoup ont critiqué la mission de Chypre
pour les raisons que vous avez données.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Ce n’est qu'un exemple, mais c’est
probablement le pire. Je ne sais pas si le Canada est toujours
présent au Punjab et dans d’autres pays exotiques. Autrement
dit, ce qui m’inquiéte, c’est que 'ONU compte pour beaucoup
dans ce genre de situation et parce qu’elle ne peut amener les
pays a s’entendre, elle finit par prolonger le débat, les proble-
mes qui n’en finissent plus. Voila ce que j’en pense.

Le président: L’'un des avantages de notre visite a 'ONU
serait de poser des questions précises comme celle que vous
avez soulevée. Peut-étre les représentants du Centre parlemen-
taire pourraient-ils réfléchir a la question et voir si nous ne
pourrions pas en soulever d’autres.

M. Gregory Wirick, Représentant, Centre parlementaire
pour les affaires étrangéres et le commerce extérieur: Puis-je
faire une petite suggestion? Je viens de penser que durant la
premiére semaine, on pourrait convoquer I'ancien commandant
de l'opération de Chypre, le Général Clive Millner, qui vient
de rentrer au Canada et qui pose un jugement trés critique sur
toute la mission; il a pris sa retraite 4 Kingston. Je sais qu’il
n’est pas d’accord sur I'opération de maintien de la paix dans
ce pays. Il pourrait s’avérer un témoin trés pertinent. Il a éga-
lement participé a d’autres missions de maintien de la paix, il a
donc une opinion assez objective, mais il est trés sceptique face
a I'expérience de Chypre. Je me demandais méme s’il ne serait
pas un témoin plus pertinent que le Général Maclnnis. Au
moins, nous pourrions le convoquer 4 un moment donné.

Le président: Nous pourrions le convoquer a la place du
Colonel Ethell parce que je suis presque certain que ce dernier
ne sera pas disponible.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Je ne tiens pas précisément a entendre
quelqu'un qui est opposé & cette opération précise. Je soup-
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are given a lot of problems that they do not create themselves.
It is the approach that the U.N., once it launches this rocket
called a peacekeeping effort, cannot find a way—as in the case
of the poor Russian astronaut—to bring it back because they
cannot get agreement in the structure and in the system of the
new bureaucracy to arrive at a consensus and to arrive at a ter-
mination date. It is less the actual operation that worries me
than the launching and then the non-return of the rocket.

The Chairman: | suppose you could always put a sunset
clause in the commitment.

Senator Meighen: Could there not also be some value in
talking to others? I do not think there is any other country that
has participated in every single peacekeeping mission the way
Canada has, but the Irish have been quite active, as have oth-
ers. Maybe they have some views.

The Chairman: And the Swedes pulled out of Cyprus, I
believe. They just left.

Senator Meighen: I do not think we have suggested anyone
from another country that has been active in peacekeeping.
That might be helpful.

Senator LeBlanc: I do not want to make a big issue of it, but
I think we need to focus on that before we get brainwashed in
New York, if possible.

The Chairman: The point is well taken.

Senator Molgat: I agree totally with Senator LeBlanc, as
you will surmise from the letter I sent you. I think we have to
take a fresh look at all the things we have been doing. It is not
simply a case of being critical, it is simply having a fresh look.

Perhaps you already have this in motion, but it seems to me
it would be useful for our work if we had a list of all the
involvements we have had in the past with the dates when we
started and when we finished and who our associates were. As
well, it would be useful to have a list of where we are right now
and when we started. In that list I would like to have included
how many Canadians were involved in each one, and what the
cost to Canada was. It seems to me that that background
would be helpful, particularly when we go to the U.N. Perhaps
we can get, in addition to the costs, what the sharing of the
expenses was. We should have whatever information is avail-
able so that we can properly assess the cost side.

The Chairman: Yes, that will be taken care of. Are there
any other comments?

Senator Corbin: Would it be useful to learn about the
national policies of other nations which have participated in
these peacekeeping exercises? I would like to know what other
democracies think of the whole thing, or what their current
orientation is. Sometimes they represent minorities in the over-
all package and do not always get their view across.

[Traduction)

gonne qu’on confie a ces personnes un tas de problémes dont
elles ne sont pas responsables. Ce qui me géne, c’est ’'approche
de 'ONU qui, une fois qu'elle a lancé cette fusée que I'on
appelle une opération de maintien de la paix, n’arrive pas, tout
comme le pauvre cosmonaute russe, & ramener cette fusée
parce que les parties ne parviennent pas a s’entendre sur la
structure et le syst¢éme de la nouvelle administration, elles ne
peuvent en arriver 4 un consensus et a4 une date pour mettre fin
aux opérations. Ce n'est pas tant I'opération comme telle qui
me préoccupe que le lancement de la fusée et I'impossibilité de
la ramener.

Le président: Je suppose que 'on peut toujours ajouter une
mesure de temporisation dans I'accord d’engagement.

Le sénateur Meighen: Ne vaudrait-il pas aussi la peine de
rencontrer d’autres témoins? Je ne pense qu'il y ait d’autres
pays qui aient participé aussi activement a toutes les missions
de maintien de la paix de 'ONU que le Canada. L’Irlande a
fait sa grande part tout comme d’autres. Peut-étre ces pays
ont-ils une opinion a donner.

Le président: Je crois que la Suéde vient tout juste de se
retirer de Chypre.

Le sénateur Meighen: Je ne pense pas que 'on ait proposé
de convoquer quelqu’un d’un autre pays qui participe active-
ment aux missions de maintien de la paix. Cela pourrait étre
utile.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Je ne veux pas en faire tout un plat,
mais je pense que nous devrions nous arréter a cela, si c'est
possible, avant qu’on nous «enrégimente» a New York.

Le président: J’en prends bonne note.

Le sénateur Molgat: Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec le séna-
teur LeBlanc, comme vous le constaterez dans la lettre que je
vous ai envoyée. Je pense que nous devons poser un regard
nouveau sur tout ce que nous avons fait. Il ne s’agit pas simple-
ment de critiquer, mais de jeter un éclairage différent sur les
choses.

Peut-étre y a-t-il déja une motion a cet effet, mais il me
semble qu’il serait bon, pour nos travaux, d’avoir une liste de
toutes les opérations auxquelles le Canada a participé, de la
date du début et de la fin de son engagement et des pays aux-
quels nous avons été associés. Il serait également utile de dres-
ser la liste des pays ou se trouve actuellement le Canada et de
la date du début de I’engagement. J’aimerais aussi savoir com-
bien de Canadiens ont participé a chacune de ces missions et
combien cela a colté au Canada. Je pense que ces données
nous seraient utiles, particuliérement lorsque nous irons a
’'ONU. Outre les coits, peut-étre pourrait-on donner une ven-
tilation des dépenses. Il nous faut avoir tous les renseignements
possibles pour vraiment savoir ce qu’il nous en coite.

Le président: Je vais m’en occuper. D’autres observations?

Le sénateur Corbin: Serait-il utile de connaitre la politique
des autres pays qui ont participé 4 ces missions de maintien de
la paix? J'aimerais savoir ce que pensent les autres démocra-
ties de tout cet exercice ou ce vers quoi elles se dirigent. Par-
fois, elles sont minoritaires parmi I’ensemble des pays et ne
réussissent pas toujours & exprimer leur opinion.
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The Chairman: We might work through their respective
embassies here.

Senator Corbin: Yes, something to that effect.

The Chairman: Yes, that will be useful. Of course, this is not
written in stone either. We will have to be flexible as we go
along, but I would hope you would agree it is a starting point.
Is there any further discussion?

You have all received a copy of the proposed budget, which
does not contain provision for the United Nations trip, as yet.
Does anyone have any problems with respect to the budget?

Senator Corbin: How realistic is it?

The Chairman: I think it is probably okay.

Senator LeBlanc: Why would we not include a proposal for
the trip if we are seriously thinking of it?

The Chairman: There are still too many uncertainties, sena-
tor. For example, and this may be a long shot, we may attempt
to get a DND aircraft to get us down there, and that has
implications.

Senator LeBlanc: Strictly as a matter of logistics, getting
stuff through the Committee on Internal Economy becomes
increasingly more difficult as the summer season approaches.

The Chairman: The subject will be addressed with a sense of
urgency, but I could not pin the numbers down. I wanted to
get this through and then deal with the other. It is awkward
but I saw no alternative.

Mr. Savoie: Under “All Other Expenditures, 1. Purchases of
books and periodicals”, I put $1,500 but that is a figure I took
from my head. It could be decreased.

Senator Corbin: Why don’t we run down the proposal and
see if there are any comments? I would like to know who the
counsellor is, and the advisor and so on and so forth. I have no
idea who we are talking about here.

Mr. Savoie: The counsellor is Peter Dobell. He is with the
Parliamentary Centre. The Principal Advisor is Gregory
Wirick.

The Chairman: He is the gentleman on my right.

Mr. Savoie: And the Assistant Advisor is Nicholas Swales.
He is also at the Parliamentary Centre. He is a younger fellow,
but with a background in defence matters. The two interns are
employed by DND, just as parliamentary interns. They are
students.

The Chairman: Secretarial and word processing are self-
explanatory.

Senator Molgat: 1 see no provision for translation of the
report. We have had problems in the past with that. In fact,
Senator Corbin and I were asked last year by the Committee
on Internal Economy to have a look at the issue of translation
and make a proposal, which we did. There is now an individual
who has done excellent work for us who is recommended. Are
we going to do the translation in-house?

[Traduction]

Le président: Il faudrait probablement nous adresser a leurs
ambassades ici.

Le sénateur Corbin: Oui, peut-étre.

Le président: Oui, cela serait bien. Bien siir, tout cela n’est
pas coulé dans le béton non plus. Nous allons devoir faire
preuve de souplesse en cours de route, mais j'aimerais que nous
nous entendions sur cette démarche qui serait notre point de
départ. Quelqu’un a-t-il des choses 4 ajouter?

Vous avez tous regu un exemplaire des prévisions budgétai-
res qui ne renferment aucun crédit pour le voyage aux Nations
Unies. Des questions au sujet du budget?

Le sénateur Corbin: Dans quelle mesure est-ce un budget
réaliste?
Le président: Je pense qu’il est probablement juste.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Pourquoi ne pas y inclure un poste
précis concernant le voyage si nous envisageons sérieusement
de le faire?

Le président: Il y a encore trop d’incertitudes, sénateur. Par
exemple, et cela peut étre long, il se peut que nous demandions
un aéronef des Forces armées pour nous rendre 4 New York,
ce qui a des conséquences.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Du seul point de vue logistique, il
devient de plus en plus difficile d’obtenir des choses du Comité
de la régie interne au fur et 4 mesure que 1’été approche.

Le président: La question sera traitée en toute célérité, mais
je ne peux pas donner de chiffres. Je voulais d’abord régler
cette premiére question et aborder I'autre ensuite. C’est un peu
maladroit, mais je ne voyais pas d’autre possibilité.

M. Savoie: A la rubrique «Autres dépenses», 1. Achat de
livres et de périodiques, j'ai inscrit 1 500 $, mais c’est un chif-
fre que j’ai inventé, comme cela. On peut en enlever.

Le sénateur Corbin: Pourquoi ne pas examiner la proposi-
tion et attendre les commentaires. J'aimerais savoir qui est le
conseiller et ainsi de suite. Je ne sais pas du tout de qui nous
parlons ici.

M. Savoie: Le conseiller est M. Peter Dobell, du Centre par-
lementaire. Le conseiller principal est M. Gregory Wirick.

Le président: Monsieur est assis & ma droite.

M. Savoie: Et le conseiller adjoint est M. Nicholas Swales,
lui aussi du Centre parlementaire. Il est plus jeune, mais pos-
sede de bonnes connaissances en matiére de défense. Les deux
stagiaires parlementaires sont des employés du MDN, ce sont
des étudiants.

Le président: «Travaux de secrétariat et de traitement de
textes», cela va de soi.

Le sénateur Molgat: Je ne vois aucun crédit pour la traduc-
tion du rapport. Nous avons déja eu des problémes avec cela.
En fait, I’an dernier, le Comité de la régie interne a demandé
au sénateur Corbin et 4 moi d’examiner la question de la tra-
duction et de présenter une proposition, ce que nous avons fait.
Nous avons maintenant une personne qui fait de I'excellent
travail pour nous et que nous recommandons. Allons-nous aux
recourir aux services de traduction a I'interne?
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Mr. Savoie: We do it through the Secretary of State and
then we send the report to the editor, who I think is the person
you are mentioning.

Senator Molgat: Mario Pelletier. Is there a provision in the
budget for that?

Mr. Savoie: No, that comes through the Secretary of State.
Senator Molgat: So Secretary of State pays Mr. Pelletier?

Senator Corbin: No, the Senate pays. He is on a retainer
with the Senate and he bills the Senate for specific work that
committees ask him to do. He revises and edits the report in
French.

The Chairman: Is that then charged back to the committee,
or is it just to the Senate?

Senator Corbin: It is charged to the committee, I guess. We
should ask questions about that to make sure.

Senator Molgat: The problem really arose on the terrorism
report, where the French text had to be taken back and redone
completely after it had been published. To prevent that from
happening in the future, we wanted to have a system built in so
that translation could be done accurately and quickly.

Mr. Savoie: I will check on that.

Senator Corbin: We could amend the presentation accord-
ingly. If you have to put money in there for that I think you
should, before this afternoon. Paul Bélisle and Gary O’Brien
are the ones responsible for that program.

The Chairman: Could I have a motion approving the budget
with the proviso that, if necessary, an item for translation will
be incorporated?

Senator Corbin: It is not the translation. It is editing and
revising the French text. Translation will be done as a matter
of course through the usual channels, but this fellow polishes
it.

I move the adoption of the budget.

Senator Meighen: | second that motion.

Hon. Senators: Carried.

The Chairman: Carried.

There has been circulated to you a letter that I drafted to
General de Chastelain. I invite comments or criticisms. I am
sorry I could not get this to you sooner. It was translated this
morning.

Senator Corbin: It sounds fine to me.

The Chairman: Are there any comments from other mem-
bers?

Senator LeBlanc: The first paragraph, inviting him to give
us an overview of the present direction of defence policy and
any feelings that he might have on our activity is all to the
good. I think, however, that we should resist the temptation of
those who will probably prepare his notes to give us a long his-
tory. For that purpose I would suggest that we right away plug
in an idea that appears a little later in the letter. I think we
should indicate that we do not want to have a formal paper of

[Traduction]

M. Savoie: Nous confions la traduction au Secrétariat
d’Etat, aprés quoi nous transmettons le rapport au réviseur. Je
pense que c’est de cette personne que vous parlez.

Le sénateur Molgat: Mario Pelletier. Le budget renferme-t-
il des crédits a cet effet?

M. Savoie: Non, on s’adresse au Secrétariat d’Etat.

Le sénateur Molgat: Donc le Secrétariat d’Etat paie
M. Pelletier?

Le sénateur Corbin: Non, c’est le Sénat qui paie. Il est
engagé par le Sénat et il facture le Sénat pour des travaux spé-
cifiques que les comités lui demandent de faire. Il révise et
assure la mise en page de la version frangaise du rapport.

Le président: Les frais sont-ils ensuite imputés au comité ou
seulement au Sénat?

Le sénateur Corbin: Au comité, je pense. Nous devrions
nous informer pour étre certains.

Le sénateur Molgat: En fait, le probléme s’est posé au sujet
du rapport sur le terrorisme, le texte frangais ayant di étre
retiré et refait au complet aprés avoir été publié. Pour empé-
cher que cela ne se reproduise, nous voulions concevoir un sys-
téme nous assurant que la traduction soit fidele et rapide.

M. Savoie: Je vais vérifier.

Le sénateur Corbin: Nous pourrions modifier le document
en conséquence. Si nous devons insérer des crédits pour cela, je
pense que nous devrions le faire avant cet aprés-midi. MM.
Paul Bélisle et Gary O’Brien sont les deux personnes responsa-
bles de ce programme.

Le président: Quelqu’un veut-il présenter une motion propo-
sant I’adoption du budget en précisant que des crédits pour la
traduction y seront inclus, si nécessaire.

Le sénateur Corbin: Il ne s’agit pas de la traduction, mais de
la révision et de la mise en page du texte frangais. La traduc-
tion va se faire normalement, mais ce monsieur la peaufine.

Je propose que le budget soit adopté.

Le sénateur Meighen: J’appuie la motion.
Des voix: Adopté.

Le président: Motion adoptée.

On vous a remis un projet de lettre destinée au Général de
Chastelain. J’aimerais avoir vos commentaires ou vos critiques.

Je suis désolé de n’avoir pu vous la remettre plus tot. Elle a été
traduite ce matin.

Le sénateur Corbin: Elle me parait correcte.

Le président: Les autres sénateurs ont-ils des observations a
faire?

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Le premier paragraphe dans lequel
vous I'invitez 4 nous donner une vue d’ensemble de la politique
actuelle de défense ainsi que son opinion sur nos activités me
parait trés bien. Cependant, je crois que nous devrions éviter
de tomber dans le panneau et étre obligés d’écouter un long
discours. A cette fin, je suggere que nous ciblions dés mainte-
nant une idée qui apparait plus loin dans la lettre. Nous
devrions préciser que nous ne voulons pas de document officiel
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his definitive views on the situation that has evolved in the last
few years and the new challenges to a department like defence.
In other words, I think we should divorce ourselves from the
traditional thinking.

After last night in Toronto, I hope someone is thinking in
that department. Some new thinking will be required if we
start having national guard functions. But more seriously than
that, I think we should in no way encourage him to think that
business as usual is going to be highly applauded in this group.
I do not want to be insulting, and I apologize for using that
expression, but I think we really have to say that there are new
situations in the world and ask where we fit in and how he sees
us evolving. I think this opens the door to a very long discourse
on what has been the traditional view.

The Chairman: I was hoping to keep the meeting on a very
informal level.

Senator LeBlanc: I recognize that.

The Chairman: I do not want him bringing along a bunch of
slides and graphs and that sort of thing. I am simply trying to
solicit his support and co-operation with respect to our future
activities, at this stage.

Senator Meighen: Could you not make that point when he
calls to arrange a date for the lunch?

The Chairman: It may be that instead of having his office
call my office we should leave it to the Parliamentary Centre
to organize it through their contacts. I will write the letter, but
I could mention that someone from the Parliamentary Centre
will be in touch with them, and perhaps that point could be
tactfully made with whomever your line of communication is
there.

Mr. Wirick: Fine.
The Chairman: Is that agreeable, senators?
Senator LeBlanc: Yes.

Senator Cools: Chairman, I understand your intention and
your will and the motivation to have the Parliamentary Centre
make this contact with the general. However, I am getting a
little uneasy that all our political functions are being passed
around to staff. I commend and laud the gentleman, but I
think Senator LeBlanc has raised a very important question.
We are all dismayed by events of the last few years. It seems
to me that this particular contact with the general, in which
basically we lay out the concerns, is a strongly political one
and it should be done by a senator, preferably the chairman. I
would commend you to speak to the general.

The Chairman: I am in your hands and I have no objection
whatsoever to doing that.

Senator Cools: | am getting a little concerned in life that as
we become an endangered species we become more and more
filstant from the things we are working in. For example, I put
in a call some months back to a head of a tribunal. I had to lit-
erally fight with the staff to get through to the gentleman,
because this person was so busy protecting him. It was as

[Traduction]

sur ses vues de la situation qui a évolué au cours des derniéres
années et des défis nouveaux qui se posent & un ministére
comme celui de la Défense. Autrement dit, je pense que nous
devrions procéder tout autrement qu’a I’habitude.

Apres les événements d’hier soir a Toronto, j'espére que
quelqu’un a les pieds sur terre dans ce ministére. Il faudra
repenser les choses si nous devons commencer a confier 4 la
Défense de nouvelles fonctions de garde nationale. Mais sur
une note plus sérieuse, il ne faut pas du tout I'amener a croire
que 'immobilisme sera trés bien accepté ici. Je ne veux pas
étre insultant, et je m’excuse d’utiliser cette expression, mais il
faut reconnaitre qu’il existe des situations nouvelles dans le
monde; il faut aussi lui demander ou nous nous situons et com-
ment il voit notre évolution ld-dedans. Selon moi, c’est d’ouvrir
la porte a un discours interminable sur la politique adoptée
jusqu’a maintenant.

Le président: Je veux donner un ton trés informel 4 la réu-
nion.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: J’en conviens.

Le président: Je ne veux pas qu’il apporte avec lui des tonnes
de diapositives et de tableaux. J’essaie simplement d’obtenir
son appui et sa collaboration en ce qui concerne nos travaux
futurs.

Le sénateur Meighen: Ne pourriez-vous pas lui en parler
lorsqu’il téléphonera pour fixer la date du déjeuner?

Le président: Peut-étre qu’au lieu de demander a son bureau
d’appeler le mien, nous pourrions confier au Centre parlemen-
taire le soin d’organiser la rencontre par l'intermédiaire de ses
représentants. Je vais écrire la lettre, mais je vais préciser que
quelqu’un du Centre parlementaire va les contacter. Peut-étre
pourriez-vous mentionner la chose de facon diplomate a la per-
sonne avec qui vous communiquerez.

M. Wirick: D’accord.
Le président: D’accord, sénateurs?
Le sénateur LeBlanc: D’accord.

Le sénateur Cools: Monsieur le président, je comprends vos
intentions, votre désir et votre motivation en demandant aux
gens du Centre parlementaire de contacter le Général. Cepen-
dant, je n’aime pas tellement voir que toutes nos fonctions poli-
tiques sont confiées au personnel. Je félicite M. Wirick, mais je
pense que le sénateur LeBlanc a soulevé une question trés
importante. Nous sommes tous renversés par les événements
des derniéres années. Il me semble que ce contact précis avec
le Général, 4 qui nous voulons transmettre nos préoccupations,
est une fonction politique trés importante qui doit étre exécu-
tée par un sénateur, de préférence le président du Comité.
Jaimerais que vous parliez vous-méme au Général.

Le président: Je suis 4 votre disposition et je n’ai aucune
objection a le faire.

Le sénateur Cools: Ce qui m'inquiéte un peu, c’est de voir
que nous devenons de jour en jour une espéce en voie d’extinc-
tion et que nous nous éloignons de plus en plus de nos préoccu-
pations. Par exemple, il y a quelques mois, j'ai téléphoné a un
chef de tribunal. J'ai dd littéralement me chicaner avec son
employé pour parler 4 ce monsieur parce que la personne le
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though a call from a senator was a very bad thing. I knew the
gentleman very well and he was happy to get the call and to
return it personally. I would like us to begin to break down
some of those barriers that so many are building.

The Chairman: | take the point.

Senator Molgat: [ agree that it would be better if the chair-
man did it himself.

My interest in listening to the general would be in hearing
what he perceives the threats to be. I have a feeling that the
threats are more internal than they are external in our present
situation. That does not mean we do not have international
obligations, but I would like to know exactly how he and his
department see the internal threats in Canada. Certainly
Toronto last night is one example and there can be others. I
would like to know what their assessment of that is, which ties
in totally with the eventual role of Canadian defence.

The Chairman: Senator Molgat wrote me an excellent letter
and, with your permission, senator, perhaps I could circulate
that to the members of the committee.

Senator Molgat: [ have no objections. You can send General
de Chastelain a copy too.

The Chairman: [ will do that, but these are questions that
you can pose to him on the occasion of our luncheon meeting.

Senator LeBlanc: Can [ also assume that he will be speaking
to us off the record, in the sense that it is not for publication?

The Chairman: I would assume so.

Senator LeBlanc: | think he would feel constrained if it was
recorded.

Senator Molgat: There would be no one there taking notes.

Senator Cools: | just assumed that. | am glad that Senator
LeBlanc articulated that.

The Chairman: | will make clear to him that it is an infor-
mal and off-the-record meeting.

Is there any other business that should come before the
meeting at this time?

Mr. Wirick: Will the first meeting be next week, if we can
get the Tuesday morning slot? We have to start lining up these
witnesses and the sooner we know the exact time, the better. I
have it on the proposed work schedule for the week of May 11,
which is next week.

The Chairman: | see no reason not to commence work next
week. Time is going by.

Senator Corbin: As | told you, I will be away next week.

Senator Meighen: So will 1.

The Chairman: Senator Corbin is away next week and I am
away the following week, but he will be back. We cannot help
that.

[Traduction]

protégeait tellement. C’est comme si un appel d’un sénateur
était terrible. Je connaissais le monsieur personnellement, il
était trés heureux que je 'appelle et il m’a lui-méme rappelé.
J'aimerais que nous commencions a abattre certains de ces
obstacles que beaucoup de personnes dressent devant nous.

Le président: Je prends note de votre remarque.

Le sénateur Molgat: Je suis d’accord qu’il serait préférable
que le président parle lui-méme au Général.

Ce que j'aimerais entendre du Général, ce sont les menaces
qu’il pergoit. Dans la situation actuelle, je crois qu’il s’agit plus
de menaces internes qu’externes. Cela ne veut pas dire que
nous n’avons pas d’obligations a I’échelle internationale, mais
j'aimerais savoir précisément ce que lui et son ministére esti-
ment étre les menaces internes au Canada. Nul doute que les
événements de Toronto hier soir sont un exemple, et il peut y
en avoir d’autres. J'aimerais savoir comment ils évaluent la
situation qui s’intégre parfaitement au role éventuel de la
défense canadienne.

Le président: Le sénateur Molgat m’a envoyé une excellente
lettre et, si vous le permettez, sénateur, je pourrais la remettre
aux membres du Comité.

Le sénateur Molgat: Je n’ai pas d’objection. Vous pouvez
aussi en faire parvenir un double au Général de Chastelain.

Le président: C’est ce que je vais faire, mais cette lettre ren-
ferme des questions que pourrez lui poser a I’occasion de notre
déjeuner-rencontre.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Est-ce a dire également qu’il va
s’entretenir avec nous sans étre enregistré, que ses propos ne
seront pas consignés?

Le président: Je suppose que oui.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Je pense qu’il se sentirait géné s’il en
était autrement.

Le sénateur Molgat: Personne ne prendrait de notes.

Le sénateur Cools: C’est justement ce que je pensais, je suis
content que le sénateur LeBlanc ’ait dit.

Le président: Je vais lui préciser clairement qu’il s’agira
d’une séance informelle.

Y a-t-il d’autres questions que nous devrions étudier
aujourd’hui?

M. Wirick: La prochaine réunion aura-t-elle lieu la semaine
prochaine si nous pouvons obtenir le créneau du mardi matin?
Nous devons commencer a solliciter ces témoins et plus tot
nous connaitrons la date exacte de la séance, mieux ce sera.
J'ai les données ici sur le Programme de travail envisagé pour
la semaine du 11 mai, qui est la semaine prochaine.

Le président: Je ne vois aucune raison de ne pas commencer
nos travaux la semaine prochaine. Le temps file.

Le sénateur Corbin: Comme je vous l'ai dit, je serai absent
la semaine prochaine.

Le sénateur Meighen: Moi aussi.

Le président: Le sénateur Corbin est absent la semaine pro-
chaine et ce sera mon tour la semaine suivante, mais lui sera
de retour. On n’y peut rien.
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Senator Cools: We will press on.

Senator Molgat: We should keep in mind with regard to our
agenda that if we are going to follow the House of Commons
operation we will not be sitting the last week of May.

Mr. Wirick: There is nothing scheduled the last week of
May.

Senator LeBlanc: If the staff knows of some recent book
which has an evaluation of peacekeeping history, would they
let us know? Through our office budgets we can obtain neces-
sary or desirable publications.

Mr. Wirick: I am in fact preparing a rather lengthy issue
paper for you which covers a lot of the questions that have
been asked. In addition, I will provide a bibliography and so
forth.

Senator Meighen:
expected?

Mr. Wirick: It is being translated now. We have asked for it
for next Tuesday in fact. And I can get the bibliography to
your offices at any time. So it should be available by the time
of the first meeting.

The Chairman: The meeting is terminated.

The committee adjourned.

When might that reasonably be

[Traduction]
Le sénateur Cools: Nous accélérerons le pas.

Le sénateur Molgat: En ce qui concerne notre programme, il
ne faudrait pas oublier que si nous suivons le rythme des tra-
vaux des Communes, nous ne siégerons pas la derniére semaine
de mai.

M. Wirick: Rien n’est prévu pour cette semaine-1a.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Si les employés connaissent des ouvra-
ges récents sur I'histoire des missions de maintien de la paix,
auraient-ils I'obligeance de nous en informer? Gréce au budget
de nos bureaux, nous pouvons obtenir les publications nécessai-
res ou souhaitables.

M. Wirick: En fait, je suis en train de rédiger a votre inten-
tion un document assez volumineux qui couvre un trés grand
nombre des questions qui ont été posées. Je vais également
fournir une bibliographie.

Le sénateur Meighen: Quand peut-on raisonnablement pré-
voir recevoir votre document?

M. Wirick: Il est en voie de traduction actuellement. Nous
’avons demandé pour mardi prochain en fait. Je peux envoyer
la bibliographie a vos bureaux n’importe quand. Le document
devrait donc étre disponible a la premiére réunion.

Le président: La séance est levée.

Le Comité ajourne ses travaux.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE ORDRES DE RENVOI
Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Extrait des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du mardi 18 février
Tuesday, February 18, 1992: 1992:

“Resuming the debate on the motion of the
Honourable Senator Stewart, seconded by the
Honourable Senator MacDonald (Halifax):

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to hear evidence and to examine
and report on matters relating to national security and
defence and the future roles of Canada’s armed forces;

That the membership of the Senate Committee on For-
eign Affairs be increased to twenty (20) members and
that Rule 87(1)(h) be suspended in relation thereto; and

That the Committee present its report no later than
March 31, 1993.

After debate,
The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.”

«Reprise du débat sur la motion de I’honorable séna-
teur Stewart, appuyée par I’honorable sénateur Mac-
Donald (Halifax):

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étran-
géres soit autorisé a entendre des témoignages et a exa-
miner, pour en faire rapport, des questions ayant trait a la
séeurité et a la défense nationale ainsi qu’aux rdles que
les Forces armées canadiennes seront appelées a jouer
dans Iavenir;

Que la composition du comité sénatorial permanent
des affaires étrangdres soit augmentée a vingt (20)
membres et que I'application de I'article 87(1)h) soit sus-
pendue a cet égard; et

Que le Comité présente son rapport au plus tard le 31
mars 1993.

Apres débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Gordon L. Barnhart

Clerk of the Ser

wate

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Standing Extrait des Proces-verbaux du Comité sénatorial permanent
Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs, Tuesday, March 31, des Affaires étrangéres, le mardi 31 mars 1992:

1992:

“Pursuant to Rule 97(4) of the Rules of the Senate, the
Honourable Senator Roblin moved—

That a Subcommittee of the Standing Senate Commit-
tee on Foreign Affairs, to be known as the Subcommittee
on Security and National Defence, be appointed;

That the Subcommittee be authorized to hear evidence
and to examine and report on matters relating to national
security and defence and the future roles of Canada’s
armed forces; and

That the Subcommittee be composed of the
Honourable Senators Balfour, Cools, Corbin, Doody,
LeBlanc (Beauséjour), Marshall, Meighen, Phillips and
the Chairman of the Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs ex officio.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

«Conformément a l'article 97(4) du Reéglement du
Sénat, I’honorable sénateur Roblin propose—

Que soit créé un sous-comité du comité sénatorial per-
manent des aflaires étrangCres qui porterait le nom de
sous-comité sur la sécurité et la défense nationale;

Que le sous-comité soit autorisé a entendre des témoi-
gnages ¢t & examiner, pour en faire rapport, des questions
ayant trait & la séeurité et a la défense nationale ainsi
qu’aux rdles que les Forces armées canadiennes seront
appelées a jouer dans I'avenir; et

Que le sous-comité soit composé des honorables séna-
teurs Balfour, Cools, Corbin, Doody, LeBlanc (Beausé-
Jour), Marshall, Meighen, Phillips et le président du
comité sénatorial des Affaires étrangeres membre
d’office.

La question, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Comité

Line Gravel
Clerk of the Com

mittee
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TUESDAY, MAY 12, 1992
(€)
(Text]

The Subcommittee on Security and National Defence of the
Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at 9:00
a.m. this day, the Chairman, the Honourable Senator James
Balfour, presiding.

Members of the Subcommittee present: The Honourable
Senators Balfour, Cools, Doody, LeBlanc, Marshall and Phil-
lips. (6)

Other Senator present: The Honourable Senator Grafstein.

In Attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Gregory Wirick, Principal
Advisor to the Subcommittee.

Also in Attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.

Witnesses:

Professor Harold P. Klepak, Ph.D., Royal Military College
of Richelain, Quebec.

From the Department of National Defence:

MGen. J.A. Maclnnis, Chief of Operational Planning and
Force Development;

Col. M.J.R. Houghton, Director, Peacekeeping Operations.

The Subcommittee, in compliance with its Order of Refer-
ence dated March 31, 1992, continued its study of matters
relating to national security and defence and the future roles of
Canada’s armed forces.

MGen. Maclnnis made a statement and answered questions.
Professor Klepak made a statement and answered questions.

Colonel Houghton made a statement and answered ques-
tions.

Agreed,—Thalt reasonable travelling and living expenses be
paid to Professor Harold P. Klepak, to defray his expenses for
appearing before the Subcommittee this morning.

Agreed,—That this Subcommittee concur in the following
additional Budget application for the purpose of its considera-
tion of matters relating to National Security and Defence and
the future roles of Canada’s armed forces, and that the Chair-
man, or his representative, submit the said Budget to the
Standing Committee on Foreign Affairs, for approval:

Transportation and Communications: $14,300.00

PROCKES-VERBAL

LE MARDI 12 MAI 1992
(©)

[Traduction)

Le Sous-comité de la séeurité et de la défense nationale du
Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangeres se réunit a
9 heures aujourd’hui, sous la présidence de I’honorable séna-
teur James Balfour (président).

Membres du Sous-comité présents: Les honorables séna-
teurs Balfour, Cools, Doody, LeBlanc, Marshall et Phillips.

6
Autre sénateur présent: L’honorable sénateur Grafstein.

Présent: Du Centre parlementaire des affaires étrangéres et
du commerce extérieur: M. Gregory Wirick, conseiller princi-
pal auprés du Sous-comité.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Témoins:

Le professecur Harold P. Klepak, College militaire royal,
Richelain (Québec).

Du ministére de la Défense nationale:
MGén. J.A. Maclnnis, chef de la Planification opération-
nelle et du Développement de la Force;
Le colonel M.J.R. Houghton, directeur, Opérations de
maintien de la paix.

Le Sous-comité, conformément A son ordre de renvoi du
31 mars 1992, continue I’étude de questions connexes 2 la
sécurité nationale et A la défense et aux rdles futurs des Forces
armées du Canada.

Le MGén. Maclnnis fait une déclaration et répond aux
questions.

Le professeur Klepak fait une déclaration et répond aux
questions.

Le colonel Houghton fait une déclaration et répond aux
questions.

Il est convenu,—Qu’une indemnité raisonnable pour frais
de déplacement et de séjour soit versée au professeur
Harold P. Klepak pour défrayer les dépenses qu’il a encourues
pour comparaitre devant le Sous-comité ce matin.

1l est convenu,—Que le Sous-comité souscrive 2 la
demande de budget supplémentaire suivante aux fins de son
étude de questions ayant trait 2 la sécurité et 2 la défense
nationale ainsi qu’aux roles que les Forces armées cana-
diennes seront appelées A jouer dans I'avenir et que le prési-
dent ou son représentant soumette ledit budget au Comité per-
manent des affaires étrangeres pour approbation:

Transport et communications: 14 300 $
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At 11:00 a.m., the Subcommittee adjourned to the call of A 11 heures, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convoca-
the Chair. tion du président.

ATTEST: ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Sous-comité
Patrick J. Savoie

Clerk of the Subcommittee
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Ottawa, Tuesday, May 12, 1992

(Text]

The Sub-committee on Security and National Defence of
the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met this
day at 9.00 a.m. to consider the study of peacekeeping.

Senator R. James Balfour (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Senators, we have with us this morning
Major General J.A. Maclnnis who is Chief of Operational
Planning and Force Development, DNDHQ; Professor Hal
Klepak from the Royal Military College and Colonel M.
Houghton who is Director of Peacekeeping Operations.

If you are agreeable, I would invite Major-General MaclIn-
nis to open the proceedings, followed by Professor Klepak
and followed by Colonel M. Houghton.

Major-General J.A. Maclnnis, Chief of Operational
Planning and Force Development, Department of National
Defence: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for that intro-
duction. It is a pleasure to see some of you again. We met last
in Cyprus, I believe, in 1988 while I was Commander of the
Canadian Contingent and Chief of Staff of the United Nations
Forces in Cyprus. Since that time I have remained active in
peacekeeping operations. I returned from Cyprus in 1988 and
took up the job as Director General of Military Plans and
Operations just in time to set up the UN peackeeping missions
in Iran/Irag—UNIIMOG, United Nations Military Observer
Group. That was soon followed by the operation in Namibia,
the United Nations Transition Assistance Group, which I also
helped to set up.

While that was going on, I took peacekeeping out of the
normal operations branch and set up a directorate of
peacekeeping operations under Colonel Don Ethol at the time.
I'am sure many of you know Don. He is presently Chief Cana-
dian Military Observer with the European Community Moni-
toring Mission in Yugoslavia and is in fact on his way home
tomorrow having completed his tour of duty with the Cana-
dian Forces. He was the first director of peacekeeping opera-
Fions: he turned it over later to Colonel Mike Houghton, who
is with us today.

Why was it necessary to set up a peacekeeping directorate?
I~( was simply a matter of workload. There is no special reason
for having a separate peacekeeping operation directorate,

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 12 mai 1992

[Traduction

Le Sous-comité de la séeurité et de la défense nationale du
Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangeres se réunit
aujourd’hui 2 9 heures pour examiner I’étude des activités de
maintien de la paix.

Le sénateur R. James Balfour (président) occupe le fau-
teuil.

Le président: Sénateurs, nous accueillons aujourd’hui le
major-général J.A. Maclnnis, qui est chef de la Planification
opérationnelle et du développement des Forces au QGDN; le
P Hal Klepak, du Collége militaire royal, et le colonel
M. Houghton, qui est directeur des Opérations de maintien de
la paix.

Si vous &tes d’accord, j'inviterais le major-général MacIn-
nis & commencer, avant le P Klepak, qui sera suivi du colonel
M. Houghton.

Le major-général J.A. Maclnnis, chef de la Planification
opérationnelle et du développement des Forces, ministére
de la Défense nationale: Monsieur le président, merci beau-
coup de cette présentation. Je suis heureux de revoir certains
d’entre vous. C’est a Chypre, sauf erreur, que nous nous
sommes vus pour la dernicre fois, en 1988, du temps que
j’étais commandant du contingent canadien et chef d’état-
major des forces des Nations Unies a Chypre. Depuis ce
temps, je suis demeuré actif dans les opérations de maintien de
la paix. A mon retour de Chypre en 1988, j’ai été nommé
directeur général des Plans militaires et opérations, juste 2
temps pour organiser les missions de maintien de la paix de
I’ONU en Iran/ Irak, avec le GOMNUII—Ile Groupe
d’observateurs militaires des Nations Unies—juste avant
I’opération en Namibie, soit celle du Groupe d’assistance des
Nations Unis pour la période de transition, que j’ai aussi con-
tribué a organiser.

En méme temps, jai détaché des opérations normales les
activités de maintien de la paix et créé une direction des opé-
rations de maintien de la paix, sous I'autorité du colonel
Don Ethol & I’époque. Un grand nombre d’entre vous connais-
sez Don, j’en suis sir. 1l est actuellement observateur militaire
canadien en chef auprés de la mission de surveillance de la
Communauté curopéenne en Yougoslavie, d’o il rentre effec-
tivement demain, au terme de son affectation et au terme de sa
période de service avec les Forces canadiennes. Il a été le pre-
mier dirccteur des opérations de maintien de la paix, qu’il a
plus tard confiées au colonel Mike Houghton, qui est ici
aujourd’hui.

Pourquoi fallait-il créer une direction du maintien de la
paix? C’était une simple question de charge de travail. Il n’y a
pas de raison particuli¢re pour avoir une direction distincte des
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except that in this case I determined that the workload was
just too great for the normal operations staff to handle and it
required a colonel to supervise it.

As we were meeting in Cyprus, the nature of peacemaking
was undergoing changes in the United Nations. Although
much of the change can be attributed to the tireless work of
the Secretary General himself, the Security Council became
progressively more willing to cooperate in establishing peace
in certain regions. Resolution 598, adopted in 1987, was the
first result of this new cooperation and set up in turn a series
of measures leading to the resolution of the Iran-Iraq conflict.

As peacekeepers, we became involved directly on the day
of the fact. Before that time traditional peacekeeping opera-
tions had occurred after the fact, in the form of third-party
intervention once the erstwhile belligerents had decided to end
the conflict. Since 1987 more and more missions have
involved peacekeeping as part of the process of establishing
the peace. Examples include Namibia and, hopefully, Yugo-
slavia; and, of course, one clear case of peace enforcement is
the Gulf.

A further example of this new cooperation in the Security
Council is the fact that, since 1987, the United Nations has
created nine new peacekeeping missions. In the first 43 years
of the Security Council’s existence it had created but 13 mis-
sions.

Moreover, the face of peacekeeping has changed. Objec-
tives contain more than simply interposing blue-greys
between belligerents. Peacekeeping involves the return of ref-
ugees, supervision of elections, humanitarian assistance, and
even monitoring of human rights. Although most of these
activities are present in some degree in Cyprus on an ongoing
basis, they now form specific commitments, as, for example,
occurred in Namibia, Central America, the Western Sahara
and laterally in Cambodia.

Fundamentally, the job of the soldier engaged in peacekeep-
ing has not changed. The truly successful military peacekeeper
is a symbol of stability, restraint and order, conditions which
must prevail if other peacekeeping, peacemaking or
peacebuilding objectives are to be met. In this capacity the
Canadian soldier excels. Time and again the well trained
officer, as an unarmed military observer, and the soldiers,
sailors and airmen, as part of the peacekeeping forces, have
shown that they have the confidence, training and discipline
necessary to face any challenge and risk that peacekeeping
involves.

[Traduction)

opérations du maintien de la paix, si ce n’est que, dans ce cas,
j'ai jugé que la charge de travail dépassait les capacités du
personnel des opérations normales et qu’il fallait la placer
sous la supervision d’un colonel.

Lors de notre rencontre 2 Chypre, la nature du maintien de
la paix subissait des transformations aux Nations Unies. Bien
qu’une bonne part du changement puisse étre attribué au tra-
vail inlassable du secrétaire général lui-méme, le Conseil de
séeurité s'est montré progressivement plus disposé a collabo-
rer A I'établissement de la paix dans certaines régions. La réso-
lution 598, adoptée en 1987, qui était le premier fruit de cette
nouvelle collaboration, a par ailleurs enclenché une série de
mesures qui ont mené au réglement du conflit Iran-Irak.

En tant que gardiens de la paix, nous sommes intervenus
des le premier jour. Avant cela, les opérations traditionnelles
de maintien de la paix arrivaient apreés le fait, sous forme
d’intervention de tiers, une fois que les belligérants eussent
décidé de mettre fin au conflit. Depuis 1987, un nombre tou-
jours plus grand de missions ont comporté des activités de
maintien de la paix dans le cadre du processus d’établissement
de la paix. La Namibie et, je I’espere, la Yougoslavie en sont
des exemples, sans compter, bien s@r, un autre cas manifeste
de maintien de la paix, celui du Golfe.

Autre exemple de cette nouvelle coopération au Conseil de
séeurité, depuis 1987, les Nations Unies ont créé neuf nou-
velles missions de maintien de la paix. Pendant les 43 pre-
micres années de I’existence du Conseil de sécurité, elles n’en
avaient créées que 13.

En outre, le maintien de la paix a changé de visage. Les
objectifs vont plus loin que la simple interposition des gris-
bleus entre belligérants. Le maintien de la paix, c’est aussi le
retour des réfugics, la supervision des élections, I’aide huma-
nitaire, voire la surveillance des droits de la personne. Bien
qu’elles soient des activités courantes, jusqu’a un certain
point, & Chypre, la plupart de ces activités représentent désor-
mais des engagements précis, comme, par exemple, en Nami-
bie, en Amérique centrale, dans le Sahara occidental et, latéra-
lement, au Cambodge.

Fondamentalement, le travail du soldat affecté au maintien,
de la paix n’a pas changé. Le militaire gardien de la paix qui
réussit vraiment est un symbole de stabilité, de retenue et
d’ordre, autant de conditions préalables a I’atteinte des autres
objectifs de maintien, d’établissement ou d’édification de la
paix. Dans ce rdle, le soldat canadien excelle. Maintes et
maintes fois, I’officier bien entrainé, a titre d’observateur mili-
taire sans armes, et les soldats, les marins et les aviateurs par-
ticipant aux forces de maintien de la paix, ont démontré qu’ils
ont la confiance, I’entrainement et la discipline qu’il faut pour
relever n’importe quel défi et n’importe quel risque lié au
maintien de la paix.
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The reason for this is that the Canadian military forces train
to a general-purpose-combat capability. This means they are
capable of engaging effectively in combat operations on a
higher scale of conflict than peacekeeping. In my view, should
a military force attempt to train exclusively for peacekeeping
operations, that force would be at a level of capability below
that of most of the erstwhile belligerents, thereby creating a
situation that would at the least be unstable and in my experi-
ence dangerous. To emphasize, it is the Canadian soldiers’
high level of military professionalism that makes them the
respected peacekeepers they are.

I will stop my remarks there. The detail of Canadian partici-
pation in the ongoing missions, the costs involved and what is
likely to happen from our perspective in the future, I will
leave up to Colonel Mike Houghton.

The Chairman: I was remiss in not furnishing the commit-
tee with some details on the background of the witnesses.
Major-General MaclInnis was appointed Chief of Operational
Planning and Force Development at NDHQ in April 1991.
Prior to this Major-General MacInnis was respectively Asso-
ciate Assistant Deputy Minister for Policy and Director Gen-
eral of Military Plans and Operations. From 1986 to 1988 he
served as Chief of Staff and Canadian Contingent Commander
to the UN peacekeeping force in Cyprus. He began his regi-
mental duty in 1961 and served as captain with the First Regi-
ment, Royal Canadian Horse Artillery, in Germany from 1966
to 1969. He attended the Colleége militaire royal de St-Jean,
and is a graduate of Queen’s University and the Canadian
Army Staff College at Kingston.

Professor Harold Klepak is currently a Professor of Political
Science, International Relations and Strategy, at the Collége
militaire royal de St-Jean. From 1969 to 1976 Professor
Klepak worked at the Operational Research and Analysis
Establishment of National Defence Headquarters. Afterwards,
he joined the Collége militaire royal de St-Jean and Queen’s
University in order to teach strategic studies. Professor Klepak
is published widely on subjects such as NATO, Central
America and Canadian defence-related issues. During his 15
years in the Canadian Army Reserve, with the Royal Highland
Regiment, Professor Klepak also became very familiar with
military personnel and administration, and he received his
M.A. and Ph.D from the University of London.

Colonel Mike Houghton is Director of Peacekeeping Oper-
ations at National Defence Headquarters. In 1987 Colonel
Houghton was Regimental Commander of the Canadian Air-
borne Regiment, which has as its primary function the defence
of Canada but services the UN standby force. Before being
assigned to the Canadian Forces Base Baden-Soellingen in

[Traduction)

C’est que les militaires canadiens s’entrainent en fonction
d’un potentiel de combat a fins générales. Cela signifie qu’ils
sont capables de participer efficacement a des opérations de
combat a un niveau de conflit qui dépasse le maintien de la
paix. A mon avis, la force militaire qui s’entrainerait exclusi-
vement pour des opérations de maintien de la paix
n’atteindrait pas le niveau de potentiel de la plupart des
anciens belligérants, ce qui représenterait une situation 2 tout
le moins instable et, selon mon expérience, dangereuse. Je
souligne que c¢’est le haut niveau de professionnalisme mili-
taire des soldats canadiens qui en fait les gardiens de la paix
respectés qu’ils sont.

Je m’arréte 1a. Je laisse au colonel Mike Houghton le soin
d’exposer le détail de la participation canadienne aux missions
permanentes, les cofits en cause et ce que |I’avenir nous
réserve vraisemblablement, dans notre perspective.

Le président: Je m’en veux de ne pas avoir donné au
Comité certains détails sur les antécédents des témoins. Le
major-général MacInnis a été nommé chef de la Planification
opérationnelle et du développement des Forces au QGDN en
avril 1991. Avant d’occuper ce poste, le major-général Macln-
nis a été respectivement sous-ministre adjoint associé (Poli-
tiques) et directeur général des Plans militaires et des opéra-
tions. Entre 1986 et 1988, il a agi en qualité de chef d’état-
major et de commandant du contingent canadien des Forces
de maintien de la paix des Nations Unies a Chypre. Il a com-
mencé son service régimentaire en 1961. Il a servi comme
capitaine aupr®s du Premier régiment de la Royal Canadian
Horse Artillery, en Allemagne, de 1966 a 1969. 1l a étudi€ au
College militaire de Saint-Jean. Il est diplomé de I’Université
Queen’s et du Collége d’état-major de I’Armée canadienne 2
Kingston.

Le Pr Harold Klepak est actuellement professeur de sciences
politiques (Relations et stratégie internationales) au College
militaire Royal de Saint-Jean. Entre 1969 et 1976, le
Pr Klepak a travaillé au Centre d’analyse et de recherche opé-
rationnelle du Quartier général de la Défense nationale. 1l a
ensuite enseigné au Collége militaire de Saint-Jean et a
I’Université Queen’s (Studes stratégiques). Le Pr Klepak a
publié¢ de nombreux ouvrages sur I'OTAN, I’Amérique cen-
trale et les questions militaires touchant le Canada. Au cours
de ses 15 années au sein de la Réserve de I’ Armée canadienne,
dans le Royal Highland Regiment, il a appris 2 trés bien con-
naitre le personnel et I’administration militaires. Il est titulaire
d’une maitrise et d’un doctorat de I'Université de Londres.

Le colonel Mike Houghton est directeur des Opérations de
maintien de la paix au Quartier général de la Défense natio-
nale. En 1987, il a agi en qualité de commandant du Régi-
ment aéroporté du Canada, qui a pour tiche premigre
d’assurer la défense du Canada mais qui sert de force de
réserve pour I’ONU. Avant d’étre affecté a la Base des Forces
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Germany, Colonel Houghton also served as NATO\UN Plans
and Operations Staff Officer. He graduated from the Royal
Military College, Kingston, with a degree in geopolitics.

I now call upon Professor Klepak.

Le professeur Hal Klepak: Je vous remercie, monsieur le
président. Je suis un peu géné de comparaitre avec des
officiers aussi qualifés que ceux présents aujourd’hui, surtout
qu’ils ont beaucoup vécu et non seulement étudié, les ques-
tions du maintien de la paix tandis que moi, comme pauvre
professeur, j’ai été obligé de rester dans ma tour d’ivoire.

Nonetheless, I will try to say a word or two about the sub-
ject today, which concerns traditional theories and Canada’s
role in peacekeeping. I will do that in terms of both opportuni-
ties and dangers, such as they seem to me to be presenting
themselves at the present moment, and the kind of impact they
might have, not so much on traditional theories as on the
evolution of practice. In many ways, as opposed to some other
areas of international relations, it is the actions that are bring-
ing in their wake evolution of theory. That may be under-
standable given the fact that events are moving so quickly.
There is little time at all for the supposed thinkers to work on
these things before they indeed become ad hoc operations on
the ground transforming completely what we had been think-
ing in the past. Some of those things were already alluded to
in General Maclnnis’s comments.

In the past we have had fairly restrained definitions. I will
not talk about definitions, you will be delighted to know,
because there are hundreds of them circulating on peacekeep-
ing and they are evolving every day. Traditionally, we talked
about peacekeeping operations as the use of international mili-
tary personnel under UN command or some other organiza-
tion’s command, and with the consent of the parties, to help to
control and resolve conflicts between states or hostile commu-
nities within a state. I think we have already learned from
General Maclnnis’s comments that it can go much more
widely than that, and in the last four or five years it has.

In no way should one be surprised that peacekeeping is
being transformed. Peacekeeping is, after all, one of the major
ways of ensuring that brush fires, smaller wars, do not become
larger ones. In this era of small wars, unleashed among all the
positive sides at the end of the Cold War, one is seeing not
only a transformation of the international system but, as a
result of that transformation, also major changes in
peacekeeping. Nonetheless, it seems to me that the key princi-
ples that have existed in peacekeeping in the last few year-
s—and this is where perhaps one will see some dangers as

28150-2

[Traduction)

canadienne de Baden-Socllingen en Allemagne, le colonel
Houghton a aussi servi a titre d’officier d’état-major, Plans et
opérations, de ’OTAN\ONU. Il est titulaire d’un dipléme en
géopolitique du College militaire Royal de Kingston.

Je passe la parole au Pr Klepak.

Professor Hal Klepak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I feel a
bit uneasy appearing alongside such qualified officers as those
in attendance today, especially as they have lived through and
not only studied peace-keeping matters, while this poor pro-
fessor was forced to stay in my ivory tower.

Néanmoins, je ticherai de dire quelques mots sur le sujet
d’aujourd’hui, qui concerne les théories traditionnelles et le
role du Canada dans le maintien de la paix. J’aborderai la
question sous I'angle des occasions et des dangers qui, me
semble-t-il, se présentent aujourd’hui et du genre d’incidences
qu’ils risquent d’avoir, non pas tant sur nos théories tradition-
nelles que sur I’évolution de la pratique. A bien des égards,
par opposition avec certains autres domaines des relations
internationales, ce sont les actions qui, dans leur sillage, font
évoluer la théorie. Cela se comprend lorsqu’on voit la vitesse
a laquelle se déroulent les événements. Les gens qui sont cen-
sés penser ont bien peu de temps pour y voir clair avant que
ces choses-1a, devenues des opérations spéciales sur le terrain,
ne transforment complétement notre pensée de jadis. Le géné-
ral MacInnis a déja fait allusion a certaines de ces choses-1a
dans ses commentaires.

Par le passé, nous avions des définitions pas mal étroites.
N’ayez crainte, je ne vous parlerai pas de définitions, parce
qu’il en existe des centaines pour le maintien de la paix et
elles changent tous les jours. Traditionnellement, les opéra-
tions de maintien de la paix signifiaient pour nous I’utilisation
de personnel militaire international sous le commandement de
I’ONU ou d’un autre organisme, avec le consentement des
parties, pour aider a contrbler et a résoudre les conflits entre
Etats ou entre collectivités hostiles d’un méme Etat. Nous
savons déja, par les commentaires, du général Maclnnis, que
cela peut aller beaucoup plus loin, comme c’est le cas depuis
quatre ou cinq ans.

Il ne faut absolument pas se surprendre de la transformation
du maintien de paix. Le maintien de la paix, est, somme toute,
une des grandes fagons de s’assurer que les feux de brousse,
les petites guerres, n’en deviendront pas des grandes. En cette
époque de petites guerres, qui font partie des nombreux
aspects positifs de la fin de la guerre froide, on assiste non
seulement & une transformation du systéme international mais,
a la faveur de cette transformation, a de grands changements
également au niveau du maintien de la paix. Néanmoins, il me
semble que les grands principes qui caractérisent le maintien



33410

Security and National Defence

12-5-1992

[Text]

well have not necessarily been set aside, I refer to key princi-
ples such as nonintervention in domestic affairs, full guaran-
tees for safety of personnel insofar as that is possible, and the
absolute agreement of all parties to deployment of a force.
These have not necessarily been set aside but certainly require
more nuances to be given to them, given the context of change
and action in truly wide-ranging areas—not that peacekeeping
was ever in any way a reduced or very limited activity, but at
the moment it is exploding in many ways.

It seems to me that this relaxation of general east-west ten-
sions and the disappearance of the Soviet Union as an actor on
the world stage is really the kind of thing we are talking
about. If we can see nontraditional roles becoming much
more visible, it is because the world situation has simply no
links with what it has been known to be, very comfortably 1
believe, in Canada over the last four decades. Now we are in a
completely new ball game, particularly since the end of the
last decade. We are now involved in democratization, demobi-
lization, referendum/election supervisions, and the very thorny
issue, which has all kinds of dangers implicit in it, the supervi-
sion of human rights. While in no way is this superseding the
traditional role of providing political space and time for the

negotiation of disputes, nonetheless a much wider range of

areas is now being discussed and, indeed, implemented.

I thought it was interesting to note in the general’s com-
ments that whereas before one talked about after-the-fact
interventions in peacekeeping, now one is talking, almost all
the time, about prior-to-the-fact interventions and of becom-
ing part of the actual process of the settlement of disputes.

So there are lots of things that we can do. We can help make
the new world order, which I think we are seeing, truly change
for the better in terms of democratization and in terms of
peaceful settlement of disputes and of human rights.

I would like to say one or two things about new dangers.
One is that this increase in range, scope and frequency tends
to be increasingly involved in what are, at least in many cases,
seen as internal issues. One of the advantages of the past,
more traditional, experience was that, with the status of states
as parties to conflict in most cases, there was a natural moti-
vating general interest on the international scene to seek
peace. There was also an ease in operations. There were disci-
plined, organized, military forces in most cases; a state that
had responsibilities had a certain status in international affairs,

[Traduction]

de la paix depuis quelques années—et c’est peut-étre 12 qu’on
verra certains dangers également n’ont pas nécessairement été
écartés. Je veux parler de grands principes comme la non-
intervention dans les affaires intérieures, les garanties inté-
grales de séeurité du personnel dans toute la mesure du possi-
ble et I’accord absolu de toutes les parties pour le déploiement
d’une force. Ces principes n’ont pas nécessairement été
écartés, mais ils appellent certes plus de nuances, compte tenu
du contexte de changement et d’action dans des domaines
extrémement vastes. . . Sans dire que le maintien de la paix ait
jamais été, de quelque fagon, une activité réduite ou trés limi-
tée, précisons qu’aujourd’hui cette activité explose, a bien des
égards.

Il m’apparait que ce relichement des tensions générales
entre I’Est et I’Ouest et la disparition de I’Union soviétique
comme intervenant sur la scéne mondiale forment effective-
ment le genre de toile de fond dont nous parlons. Si des réles
traditionnels nous apparaissent beaucoup plus visibles, c’est
que la situation mondiale est tout simplement sans rapport
aucun avec ce que nous en savions, dans le plus grand confort,
au Canada depuis quatre décennies. La situation a changé du
tout au tout, surtout depuis la fin de la derniere décennie.
Nous travaillons désormais a la démocratisation, a la démobi-
lisation, 2 la surveillance d’élections référendaires et a la tres
épineuse question, assortie de toutes sortes de dangers, de la
surveillance des droits de la personne. Bien que cela ne rem-
place en rien le role traditionnel de I’aménagement de I’espace
et du temps politiques pour la négociation de solutions aux
différends, il reste qu’il est question d’'une gamme beaucoup
plus vaste de sujets, auxquels il est effectivement donné suite.

Il m’est apparu intéressant de relever dans les commentaires
du général qu’alors qu’on parlait jadis d’interventions de
maintien de la paix apres le fait, il est désormais presque tou-
jours question d’interventions préalables et de participation au
processus elfectif de reglement des conflits.

Il y a donc bien des choses que nous pouvons faire. Nous
pouvons contribuer A la réalisation du nouvel ordre mondial,
que nous voyons, me semble-t-il, se transformer véritablement
dans le bon sens de la démocratisation et du réglement paci-
fique des conflits et des droits de la personne.

J'aurais une ou deux choses 2 ajouter au sujet des nouveaux
dangers. D’abord, cette augmentation de 1I’étendue, de la por-
tée et de la fréquence a tendance A toucher de plus en plus des
questions qui semblent, dans bien des cas tout au moins, étre
des questions internes. Parmi les avantages du passé, selon
I'expérience plus traditionnelle, les Etats étant, dans la plupart
des cas, parties au conflit, la recherche de la paix présentait un
intérét général motivant naturel sur la scéne internationale. En
outre, les opérations Ctaient faciles. Il y avait, dans la plupart
de cas, des forces militaires disciplinées, organisées; un Etat
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and there was of course international law, whatever that
means, to help us out in terms of arranging things.

Once one begins to talk increasingly of internal matters,
one talks about all the difficulties that can arise—and we can
discuss some of them. One is the difficulty in speaking to par-
ties to negotiations or conflicts that are not states, that do not
have that status and that may not have disciplined regular
forces. One thinks of the Contras in Nicaragua, the FMLN in
El Salvador, and what is happening in the Caucasus at the
moment or what is occurring in Yugoslavia. Therefore there
might be even less likelihood, not only on the tactical side but
also on the acceptability side, of getting agreement on all
sides. You may have the FMLN or the death squads. In the
case of death squads, they are not formal parties to any agree-
ment and this can certainly add complications to planning in
terms of safety of one’s forces and the like. It also may be
more difficult to remain objective, but that remains to be seen.
It seems to me that the key in confronting these kinds of dan-
gers is that there should be care and caution in the decision as
to when and how to intervene . That is certainly a Canadian
tradition.

Here are some specific Canadian considerations. It seems to
me that peacekeeping is popular. It is the thing that the forces
are perhaps best known for domestically, despite a tremendous
military history in war time. I think it is very important to
maintain this view. From a military point of view, particularly
now that we have withdrawn from Europe to all intents and
purposes, peacekeeping is the only major area of Canadian
military activity that is not continental, bearing in mind that
the Commonwealth defence cooperation, is certainly in
reduced circumstances if not in tatters, without the U.K. link
within NATO. As a large scale activity, peacekeeping is what
we do that is not with the United States and therefore may
provide a role in terms of keeping our forces abreast not so
much with modern technology as with what is happening in
the world in cooperative efforts on a multilateral basis. As
multilateralism is the basis of Canadian interests historically,
that is an important point.

General Maclnnis already referred to something that is
worth underscoring, and that is training. A good soldier tends
to be a good peacekeeper. That is not necessarily the case, but
it tends to be so. Again with the loss of the European role,
particularly in the army, we need roles, it seems to me, that
ask for that good soldier and demand that he continue to be
produced.

The last issue I would like to address is the strategic neces-
sity. This is an area where I see some difficulty potentially.

[Traduction)

qui avait des responsabilités avait un certain statut dans les
affaires internationales, sans compter le droit international—-
peu importe le sens qu’on lui donne—pour nous aider 2 arran-
ger les choses.

Des lors qu’on se met & parler davantage des questions
internes, on touche toutes les difficultés qui peuvent surgir—et
nous pouvons parler de certaines d’entre elles. La premiére
difficulté, c’est de parler aux parties a des négociations ou a
des conflits qui ne sont pas des Etats, qui n’ont pas ce statut et
qui n’ont pas toujours de forces régulieres disciplinées. Qu’on
pense A la contra au Nicaragua, au FFLN au Salvador, a ce qui
se passe dans le Caucase en ce moment, ou en Yougoslavie.
Par conséquent, on risque d’avoir encore moins de chance,
non seulement du cdté tactique, mais encore du coté de
I’acceptabilité, d’obtenir I’accord de tous les camps. Prenons
le FFLN ou les escadrons de la mort. Les escadrons de la mort
ne sont pas officiellement parties a quelque convention, ce qui
vient certes compliquer la planification de la sécurité des for-
ces et ainsi de suite. Il est peut-étre aussi plus difficile de gar-
der son objectivité, mais cela reste a voir. II me semble que la
meilleure fagon de confronter ces genres de dangers, c’est de
mettre du soin dans la décision sur le moment et la fagon
d’intervenir. C’est la tradition canadienne en tout cas.

Voici quelques considérations canadiennes particulieres. I
me semble que le maintien de la paix est populaire. C’est
peut-&tre pour cette activité que nos forces sont le mieux con-
nues au Canada, malgré un passé militaire extraordinaire en
temps de guerre. J'estime trés important de maintenir cette
optique. Dans unc perspective militaire, surtout maintenant
que nous nous sommes retirés d’Europe, a toutes fins utiles, le
maintien de la paix est désormais le seul grand domaine
d’activité militaire canadienne qui ne soit pas continental—
compte tenu du fait que la coopération militaire du Common-
wealth est certainement réduite a la portion congrue, sinon en
picees, sans le lien du Royaume-Uni au sein de I'OTAN. A
titre d’activité & grande échelle, le maintien de la paix est ce
que nous faisons sans les Etats-Unis et c’est ce qui pourrait
donc nous donner un rdle A jouer pour tenir nos forces au fait
non pas tant de la technologie moderne que de ce qui se passe
dans le monde au niveau des efforts de concertation multilaté-
rale. Comme le multilatéralisme est historiquement la base des
intéréts canadiens, cela est un point important.

Le général Maclnnis a déja évoqué une chose qu’il y a lieu
de souligner, et ¢’est 'entrainement. Un bon soldat a tendance
A étre un bon gardien de la paix. M@me si ce n’est pas toujours
le cas, cela a tendance a I’Gre. Encore une fois, avec la perte
du rdle européen, particulierement dans I"armée, il nous faut
des roles, me semble-t-il, qui ont besoin de bons soldats et qui
obligent & continuer d’en préparer.

Le dernier point que je voudrais mentionner est la nécessité
stratégique. C’est un domaine ol il pourrait surgir certaines
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Traditionally, peacekeeping was always justified on two
fronts: first, there was a humanitarian side and, secondly, there
was a strictly strategic issue. In time of war Canada would be
destroyed in a central exchange between the two superpowers,
whether or not we were neutral. Hence, peacekeeping was of
obvious strategic interest to Canada since any brush-fire war
that could be kept quiet or reduced would, therefore, not lead
to a nuclear exchange between the two superpowers. Hence,
there was an obvious strategic interest for Canada in involving
itself in somewhat costly and difficult operations.

Now that the Cold War has ended—not that the Soviet
Union or its successor states no longer have nuclear
weapons—there is much less perception of a nuclear threat or
of an essential exchange between the two superpowers. This
cuts off that basic ground on the strategic side and leaves us
with the humanitarian element, although there is a general
interest in peace and stability.

There is no sign of it yet, but I think we would be remiss in
not remembering the potential that, if one started to make
errors in peacekeeping—for example, in the judgment as to
when one should go in and to the extent one should go in,
there might be the possibility of eroding Canadian public sup-
port, particularly if casualties began to result.

My last point would be in reference to the United States.
Clearly the new world order is one dominated, at least in the
short run, by the United States. The major accusation made
against peacekeeping and other operations of the United
Nations so far is that the UN is now supporting the United
States’ views around the world. Essentially the view is that
peacekeeping is, in a sense, a surrogate for United States’
interests. This is overstated, although it would be unfortunate
not to consider that it does have some impact.

The fact is there is a considerable level of support for the
United Nations and much greater interest on the part of the
United States in United Nations’ activities. That degree of
commonality of interests may not prevail forever. It behooves
Canada to keep that in mind. A wide spectrum of our political
opinion has always been in support of peacekeeping, but
whether they are on the left or the right, most people agree
that it depends on the United Nations being seen to be inde-
pendent and not falling into the pitfalls of the OAS, where, for
example, in the 1950s and 1960s the word “peacekeeping”
was synonymous with U.S. ploy (o maintain power.

. .Wc have all sorts of promise in the peacekeeping scene. As
ILis now developing peacekeeping can provide real assistance
apd a real Canadian role in supplying some of the positive
sides of a new world order, particularly for democratization,

[Traduction)

difficultés. Traditionnellement, le maintien de la paix a tou-
jours eu une double justification: premierement, I’aspect
humanitaire et, deuxiemement, la question strictement straté-
gique. En temps de guerre, neutre ou pas, le Canada aurait été
anéanti dans un ¢échange central entre les deux superpuis-
sances. Par conséquent, le maintien de la paix représentait un
intérét stratégique manifeste pour le Canada, parce que,
chaque fois que nous pouvions garder la haute main sur un feu
de broussailles ou le réduire, nous écartions la possibilité d’un
échange nucléaire entre les deux superpuissances. Par consé-
quent, le Canada avait un intérét stratégique manifeste a inter-
venir dans des opérations plutdt coiiteuses et difficiles.

Maintenant que la guerre froide est finie—et ce n’est pas
que I'Union soviétique ou les Etats successeurs n’aient plus
d’armes nucléaires—on n’a plus du tout la méme perception
de la menace nucléaire ou d’un échange essentiel entre les
deux superpuissances. Cela élimine ce motif fondamental du
cOté stratégique et nous laisse le seul élément humanitaire,
bien que la paix et la stabilité présentent aussi un intérét géné-
ral.

On n’en a encore aucun indice, mais il me semble que nous
aurions tort d’oublicr que, si Ion se met a commettre des
erreurs en maticre de maintien de la paix—par exemple, une
erreur de jugement quant au moment et a I'ampleur de
Iintervention—on pourrait risquer 1’érosion de I’appui du
public canadien, surtout s’il commence 2 y avoir des morts.

Mon dernier point concerne les Etats-Unis. Manifestement,
le nouvel ordre mondial est dominé, au moins a court terme,
par les Etats-Unis. La grande accusation portée contre les opé-
rations de maintien de la paix et les autres opérations des
Nations Unies jusqu’ici, ¢’est que ’ONU appuie désormais
les vues des Etats-Unis dans le monde entier. Essentiellement,
le maintien de la paix est pergu, dans un certain sens, comme
synonyme des intéréts des Etats-Unis. C’est exagéré, mais il
serait malheurcux d’oublier qu’ils ont certaines incidences.

La réalité est que les Nations Unies jouissent d’un niveau
considérable d’appui et que les activités des Nations Unies
intéressent beaucoup plus les Etats-Unis. Ce degré de commu-
nauté d’intéréts pourrait ne pas étre éternel. Le Canada ne doit
pas 'oublier. De vastes secteurs de notre opinion politique ont
toujours été en faveur du maintien de la paix mais qu’ils soient
de la gauche ou de la droite, la plupart des gens trouvent que
cela dépend de I'indépendance avec laquelle les Nations Unies
sont pergues, et de la mesure dans laquelle on a su éviter les
écueils de 'OEA, par exemple, le fait que dans les années
1950 et 1960, le terme «maintien de la paix» €tait synonyme
de stratagdme des Etats-Unis pour garder le pouvoir.

Nous avons toutes sortes de promesses sur la scéne du
maintien de la paix. Selon la tournure actuelle, le maintien de
la paix peut représenter une aide réelle, et un role réel dans
lequel le Canada pourra assurer certains des aspects positifs
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peace and human rights. I would caution that these areas tend
to be more fraught with difficulty than inter-state relations,
and, hence, a careful study of consequences, to the extent pos-
sible, remains a key role for external affairs and national
defence.

Colonel M. Houghton, Director, Peacekeeping Opera-
tions, Department of National Defence: Mr. Chairman,
ladies and gentlemen, my primary task as the Director of
Peacekeeping Operations is to coordinate all national activi-
ties related to the deployment, sustainment and withdrawal of
our commitments in support of peacekeeping operations
throughout the world. I would like to start my short presenta-
tion by providing you with a brief quote from the United
Nations, which states that one of the purposes of the UN is,

To maintain international peace and security, and to that
end: to take effective collective measures for the preven-
tion and removal of threats to the peace, and for the sup-
pression of acts of aggression or other breaches of the
peace, and to bring about by peaceful means, and in con-
formity with the principles of justice and international
law, adjustment or settlement of international disputes or
situations which might lead to a breach of the peace.

There are seven basic principles on which peacekeeping
operations are based not only within the United Nations but
also here in Canada: First, a workable mandate; second, con-
sistent support of the Security Council; third, cooperation of
the parties in contflict; fourth, a readiness of member states (o
make available personnel and resources; fifth, a geographi-
cally balanced and representative force; sixth, an effective and
integrated United Nations command and finally adequate
financial and logistical support, which is probably the most
important of all seven criteria. When involved in negotiations
for possible participation by Canadian forces in a peacekeep-
ing operation or mission, these principles are considered care-
fully.

You are all aware of Canada’s participation in peacekeeping
operations since World War II. I would like to add a few sta-
tistics as the basis for your possible questions. Canada has par-
ticipated in no less than 33 missions since 1947. That does not
include Korea or the Gulf War. Over 100,000 personnel have

been involved in those missions; 80 have lost their lives. If

you think of 45 years since 1947, in the past 10 of those 45
years, 14 missions have been started in which Canada has
been a member. Since May of last year, seven peacekeeping
operations have started and we have closed down one. The

[Traduction)

d’un nouvel ordre mondial, particuli¢rement en faveur de la
démocratisation, de la paix et des droits de la personne. Mais
attention! Ces domaines risquent plus de poser beaucoup plus
de difficultés que les relations entre Ftats, si bien que’une
étude attentive des conséquences, dans la mesure du possible,
demeure un role clé pour les Affaires extérieures et la Défense
nationale.

Le colonel M. Houghton, directeur, Opérations de
maintien de la paix, ministére de la Défense nationale:
Monsieur le président, mesdames et messieurs, ma tiche pre-
midre, A titre de directeur des Opérations de maintien de la
paix, consiste 2 coordonner toutes les activités nationales tou-
chant le déploiement, la maintenance en mission et le retrait
de nos engagements A I’appui des opérations de maintien de la
paix dans le monde entier. J’aimerais commencer mon bref
exposé en vous lisant une courte citation des Nations Unies,
ot I’on voit que I'un des objets des Nations Unies est

... de maintenir la paix et la sécurité internationales et, a
cette fin, de prendre des mesures collectives efficaces en
vue de prévenir et d’écarter les menaces a la paix et de
réprimer tout acte d’agression ou autre rupture de la paix,
et de réaliser, par des moyens pacifiques, conformément
aux principes de la justice et du droit international,
I’ajustement ou le réglement de différends ou de situa-
tions, de caractére international, susceptibles de mener a
une rupture de la paix.

Les opérations de maintien de la paix s’appuient sur sept
principes fondamentaux, non sculement au sein des Nations
Unies, mais chez nous également au Canada: premierement,
un mandat réalisable; deuxiémement, I’appui soutenu du Con-
seil de séeurité; troisitmement, la coopération des parties au
conflit; quatritmement, la capacité des Etats membres de met-
tre immédiatement personnel et ressources a disposition; cin-
quiemement, une force géographiquement équilibrée et repré-
sentative; sixitmement, un commandement des Nations Unies
efficace et intégré et, enfin, un bon appui financier et logis-
tique, qui est probablement le plus important des sept critéres.
Dans les négociations en vue d’une participation possible des
Forces canadiennes & une opération ou 2 une mission de main-
tien de la paix, ces principes sont examinés avec le plus grand
soin.

Vous &tes tous au courant de la participation du Canada aux
opérations de maintien de la paix depuis la Seconde Guerre
mondiale. Permettez-moi d’ajouter quelques statistiques
comme fondement des questions que vous aurez peut-&tre. Le
Canada a participé & pas moins de 33 missions depuis 1947.
Cela ne comprend ni la Corée ni la guerre du Golfe. Plus de
100 000 militaires ont participé a ces missions; 80 y ont laissé
leur vie. Quatorze des missions auxquelles le Canada a parti-
cipé ont commencé dans les 10 dernieres des 45 années depuis
1947. Depuis mai de I’an dernier, sept opérations de maintien
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trend is clearly to more involvement in conflict resolution, and
each operation will be unique in form and in purpose.

At this stage I would like to illustrate this trend a little
more. I would draw your attention to a few of the 14 missions
in which Canada is presently participating.

The United Nations Truce Supervision Organization, which
is the grandfather of them all, is considered to be a classical
observer mission in which officers from all sorts of back-
grounds are employed to supervise the cease-fire between
Israel and the Arab countries. The United Nations Disengage-
ment Observer Force in the Golan Heights is a classical
interpositional peacekeeping mission in which troops are
physically located in an area of separation between the hostile
parties, in this case Syria and Israel. The United Nations’ mis-
sion in Angola is no longer, in our view, a classical mission,
as observers are now observing a cease-fire within the bound-
aries of a country as opposed to between two hostile nations.
UNOSAL, which is the UN Mission in El Salvador, is another
situation where we depart from the classical operation in
which military observers are reporting on human rights viola-
tions.

We are involved in the European Community’s military
monitoring mission in Yugoslavia, although that is not a UN
mission. But, of course, over the years we have participated in
a number of missions that were not United Nations sponsored.
There is talk about regional organizations taking on this
responsibility. Military observers or monitors are supervising
a cease-fire in a country that is being torn apart by civil war,
and interestingly the parties to the conflict are not wearing
military uniforms. Finally, there is the United Nations’ pro-
tection force in Yugoslavia, which is a peacekeeping force or
mission parallel to the European Community monitoring mis-
sion. In this case large numbers of troops, approximately
15,000 military personnel, have been brought in to a country
being torn apart by civil war.

Clearly peacekeeping as a concept is becoming difficult to
define, and the professor has mentioned the many definitions.
It is impossible to predict what or where the next mission will
be.

This leads me to my final comments. General Maclnnis
talked about the preparation and training of our forces to meet
these new challenges. The United Nations has helped us out
somewhat by publishing a few documents on what that institu-
tion believes a military observer and a peacekeeping unit
shquld look like and also how they should be trained in prepa-
ration for missions of a generic nature.

[Traduction)

de la paix ont commencé, et nous en avons fermé une. La ten-
dance favorise manifestement une plus grande participation au
reglement des contflits, et chaque opération se particularise par
sa forme et son objet.

J’aimerais maintenant vous illustrer cette tendance un peu
mieux et, a cette fin, attirer votre attention sur quelques-unes
des 14 missions auxquelles le Canada participe actuellement.

L’Organisme des Nations Unies chargé de la surveillance
de la tréve, qui est 'ancétre de toutes ces missions, est consi-
déré comme une mission d’observation classique ol des offi-
ciers aux antécédents trés variés sont affectés a la supervision
du cessez-le-feu entre Israél et les pays arabes. La Force
d’observation des Nations Unies pour le désengagement des
forces dans le Platcau du Golan est une mission classique
d’interposition pour le maintien de la paix ou les troupes sont
physiquement situées dans une zone tampon entre parties hos-
tiles, en I'occurrence la Syrie et Israél. La mission des
Nations Unies en Angola n’est plus, a notre avis, une mission
classique, étant donné que les observateurs observent désor-
mais un cessez-le-feu A Pintérieur des frontieres d’un pays
plutdt qu’entre deux nations hostiles. UNOSAL, la mission
des Nations Unies au Salvador, est un autre cas oll nous nous
¢loignons de I'opération classique ol des observateurs mili-
taires font rapport de violations des droits de la personne.

Nous participons & la mission de surveillance militaire de la
Communauté européenne en Yougoslavie, méme si ce n’est
pas une mission de I’ONU. Mais bien sr, au fil des ans, nous
avons participé A plusicurs missions qui n’étaient pas parrai-
nées par les Nations Unies. 11 est question que des organismes
régionaux assument cette responsabilité. Des observateurs ou
surveillants militaires supervisent un cessez-le-feu dans un
pays qui est déchiré par la guerre civile et, chose intéressante,
les parties au conflit ne portent pas I'uniforme militaire.
Enfin, il y a la force de protection des Nations Unies en You-
goslavie: ¢’est une force ou une mission pour le maintien de la
paix qui est en paralltle avec la mission de surveillance de la
Communauté européenne. Dans ce cas, des effectifs considé-
rables, d’environ 15 000 militaires, ont débarqué dans un pays
déchiré par la guerre civile.

Manifestement, le concept de maintien de la paix devient
difficile A saisir, et le professeur a évoqué les nombreuses
définitions. 11 est impossible de prédire ce que sera la pro-
chaine mission ni ou elle aura lieu.

Cela améne mes commentaires finals. Le général MacInnis
a parlé de la préparation et de I’entrainement de nos forces en
prévision de ces nouveaux défis. Les Nations Unies nous ont
un peu aidés en publiant quelques documents sur ce dont, de
I’avis de cette institution, un observateur militaire et une unité
de maintien de la paix doit avoir Iair, ainsi que sur la fagon de
les entrainer en prévision de missions de nature générique.

g
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On careful examination, I have concluded that approxi-
mately 90 per cent of the characteristics and training called for
is more than covered by the training system presently in exis-
tence in the Canadian Forces. We call it—and you have
already heard the term—general purpose combat capability.
As long as we train to the standards established to meet that
capability, I am, personally, extremely confident that our per-
sonnel and units can respond to almost anything the UN
decides to establish.

The remaining 10 per cent is covered by preparation and
training peculiar to the mission at hand. We cover that particu-
lar preparation in whatever time is available before a mission
starts. Sometimes it is literally a couple of days. At other
times, such as in the case of Cyprus, we had three or four
months to prepare an organization to go to that particular area
of the world.

Perhaps I could provide you with what I consider to be one
extremely significant example of the effectiveness of our
training system. You are all aware that at the end of the Gulf
War we were asked to provide an engineering unit from Chil-
liwack, B.C. In this case 300 field engineers were deployed
from Chilliwack, B.C. to the demilitarized zone between
Kuwait and Iraq at the end of the war to lift mines, clear unex-
ploded ordinance and to build shelters for the United Nations
Forces, which were to follow. They had absolutely no warning
of this until I sent them a Warning Order through my boss.
From that time until they were actually deployed and working
on the ground it was 20 days. They continued to operate for
six months in some of the worst conditions I have seen in my
career of thirty-some years.

Ladies and gentleman, I would like end with three points
that I believe are significant in this process. First of all, the
number of requests for United Nations involvement in conflict
resolution will increase, at least for the foreseeable future
—and the professor alluded to this. Secondly, peacekeeping as
we thought we once knew it is changing and will continue to
do so. Finally, the importance of general purpose combat
capability cannot be overstated, if we want our troops (o be
prepared to meet those new challenges. Thank you.

The Chairman: Thank you, colonel. Senator Marshall.

Senator Marshall: I would like to say a word of welcome
to Major-General Maclnnis. I recall our visit to Cyprus. I have
a deep admiration for our forces because of the experience we
had when watching the troops in the peacekeeping force in
Cyprus dealing with the two sides. I came away with the

[Traduction]

Un examen plus serré m’a fait conclure que le systéme
d’entrainement actuellement pratiqué dans les Forces cana-
diennes couvre trés bien environ 90 p. 100 des caractéristiques
et de I’entrainement nécessaires. Cela s’appelle—et vous avez
probablement déja entendu le terme—Ile potentiel de combat 2
fins générales. Dans la mesure ol notre entrainement demeure
conforme aux normes établies pour répondre a ce potentiel,
j’ai, personnellement, la conviction que notre personnel et nos
unités pourront s’acquitter d’a peu prés n’importe quelle mis-
sion que I’ONU déciderait de lancer.

Les 10 p. 100 qui restent sont couverts par la préparation et
I’entrainement propres 4 la mission particuliere. Nous cou-
vrons cette préparation particuliére dans le temps dont nous
disposons avant le début d’une mission. Parfois, ce n’est litté-
ralement que quelques jours. A d’autres moments, comme
dans le cas de Chypre, nous avions trois ou quatre mois pour
préparer une organisation a aller travailler dans cette région du
monde.

Je pourrais peut-Ctre vous citer un exemple qui en dit trés
long, selon moi, sur IPefficacité de notre systeme
d’entrainement. Vous savez tous qu’a la fin de la guerre du
Golfe nous avons été appelés a fournir une unité d’ingénieurs
de Chilliwack (C.-B.). Dans ce cas, nous avons affecté
300 ingénicurs de campagne de Chilliwack (C.-B.) a la zone
démilitarisée entre le Koweit et I'Irak 2 la fin de la guerre pour
le déminage, I'enlévement de munitions non explosées et la
construction d’abris pour les forces des Nations Unies qui
devaient suivre. Ils n’en ont pas eu le moindre préavis avant
de recevoir mon ordre préparatoire par I’entremise de mon
patron. Il s’est écoulé 20 jours entre ce moment-1a et le jour ol
ils ont été effectivement déployés sur le terrain et se sont mis
au travail. Ils ont continué A travailler pendant six mois dans
certaines des pires conditions qu’il m’ait été donné de voir
dans mes 30 ct quelques années de carridre.

Mesdames ¢t messieurs, je conclurai sur trois points que
j’estime importants dans ce processus. Tout d’abord, les
demandes d’intervention des Nations Unies dans le réglement
de conflits vont se¢ multiplier, du moins dans I’avenir prévisi-
ble—et le professeur y a fait allusion. En second lieu, le main-
tien de la paix que nous pensions connaitre jadis change et
continuera de changer. Enfin, on ne saurait surestimer
I"importance du potentiel de combat 2 fins générales, si nous
voulons que nos troupes soient prétes a relever ces nouveaux
défis. Merci.

Le président: Merci, colonel. Sénateur Marshall.

Le sénateur Marshall: J’aimerais dire un mot de bienve-
nue au major-général Maclnnis. Je me rappelle notre visite &
Chypre. J’ai pour nos forces une profonde admiration aprés
étre allé observer les troupes de la force de maintien de la paix
A Chypre traiter avee les deux camps. J'en suis revenu avec
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impression that they indeed were at war. I had a great admira-
tion for the lower ranks when they were making decisions on
how to deal with two sides who were interacting, to use the
kindest words.

In the background paper provided by our staff, the comment
was made that peacekeeping is a relatively new phenomenon.
I do not remember seeing in the white paper of the Canadian
Forces that peacekeeping was such a high priority. It has
grown either by accident or by design. Are we spreading our-
selves too thin in peacekeeping, bearing in mind, for example,
the Oka incident? We were stretched to our limits to provide a
peacekeeping force there, and if there had been another one or
two Okas we would have been hard done by.

Is our direction correct? Are we reaching a point where we
are diluting our forces, taking into account our other missions,
our other tasks, and our other responsibilities for peacekeep-
ing in our own land?

General Maclnnis: Thank you for that question. It is good
Lo see you again, Senator Marshall. I, too, recall with pleasure
your visit and that of your committee to Cyprus in 1988.

You have asked a very complex question and I will ask the
professor to help me out as we go along. Essentially, having
come out of the Cold War, we can now devote more attention
and resources to the peacekeeping mission itself. While we
were sitting at the front edge of our seats during the Cold War,
it was always a concern that we should not go above a certain
level. The figure of 2000 was used in one white paper, I think
it was in 1974. We should not go above a certain level in
deploying our troops on missions such as peacekeeping in the
event that the conditions in Europe would deteriorate so
quickly that we would not be able to meet our first and fore-
most priority at the time. That situation has changed. There-
fore, we are now prepared to devote more resources (0 mis-
sions such as stability operations in the peacekeeping mode.
That means that we are reducing our concentration on imme-
diate readiness and reducing the expenditure of financial
resources, personnel and time on keeping us at the keen edge
of readiness, ready to go back to Europe, and diverting those
resources (o allow us to spend more time on the peacekeeping
endeavours. The ceiling of 2,000 has been eliminated and in
fact we are in the process of exceeding that number.

Essentially, we knew as the Cold War was ending that the
world was likely to become more unstable, because the
east-west divide had a certain stability associated with it. I
think Professor Klepak alluded to that, but we did not have
any idea what form this instability would take. 1 think we are
now seeing it in spades, not only externally but—and you

[Traduction)

I'impression qu’on était bel et bien en guerre. J’avais une
grande admiration pour les militaires de grades inférieurs
appelés 2 décider comment traiter avec les deux camps qui
interagissaient, pour utiliser un euphémisme.

Dans le document de travail que nous a remis le personnel,
on peut lire que le maintien de la paix est un phénomene rela-
tivement nouveau. Je ne me rappelle pas avoir vu dans le livre
blanc des Forces canadiennes que le maintien de la paix fat
une si grande priorité. Il a pris de I'importance soit par acci-
dent, soit dans le cadre d’un plan. Essayons-nous d’en faire
trop pour le maintien de la paix, si I’on songe, par exemple, 2
I’incident d’Oka? Nous nous sommes étirés a la limite pour
assurer le mainticn de la paix, a tel point que nous aurions été
bien mal pris s’il y avait eu un ou deux autres Okas ailleurs.

Avons-nous la bonne orientation? Arrivons-nous un point
ot nous diluons nos forces, compte tenu de nos autres mis-
sions, de nos autres tiches et de nos autres responsabilités de
maintien de la paix chez nous?

Le général Maclnnis: Merci de cette question. Je suis heu-
reux de vous revoir, sénateur Marshall. Je me rappelle aussi
avece plaisir la visite que vous avez faite 2 Chypre en 1988
avee votre Comité.

Voltre question est tres complexe, et je demanderai au pro-
fesseur de m’aider a y répondre. Essentiellement, maintenant
que la guerre froide est chose du passé, nous pouvons consa-
crer plus d’attention et de ressources 2 la mission méme de
maintien de la paix. Pendant que la nervosité nous rongeait au
cours de la guerre froide, nous prenions toujours soin de ne
pas dépasser un certain niveau. On a pu voir le chiffre de
2 000 dans le Livre blanc, en 1974, sauf erreur. Nous ne
devons pas dépasser un certain niveau lorsque nous déployons
nos troupes dans des missions comme le maintien de la paix,
pour le cas o les conditions en Europe se détérioreraient au
point de nous empécher de répondre a notre premiére et plus
grande priorité de I’heure. Cette situation a changé. Donc,
nous sommes désormais disposés 2 consacrer plus de res-
sources humaines aux missions comme les opérations de sta-
bilité en mode de maintien de la paix. Par conséquent, nous
nous concentrons moins sur notre capacité de réaction immé-
diate, nous réduisons les ressources financiéres, le personnel
et le temps consacré A nous maintenir fin préts a retourner en
Europe, el réorientons ces ressources de maniére 2 pouvoir
consacrer plus de temps aux efforts de maintien de la paix. Le
plafond de 2 000 a éié éliminé et, de fait, nous sommes en
voie de dépasser ce nombre.

Essenticllement, nous savions, A la fin de la guerre froide,
que le monde risquait de devenir plus instable, parce que la
ligne de partage est-ouest était caractérisée par une certaine
stabilité. Je crois que le professeur Klepak y a fait allusion,
mais nous n’avions pas la moindre idée de la forme que cette
instabilité allait prendre. Nous pouvons facilement I’observer

e
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mentioned Oka—internally as well. I do not mean that Oka
was related to the Cold War; not at all. But it does indicate an
increase in the requirement to dispatch forces on fairly short
notice, albeit in smaller numbers, to handle situations that are
short of general war.

We do some have say in our participation in these types of
operations as opposed to the Cold War, when we were ready
to go en masse with everything that was in the shop window
being deployed and utilized, plus everything that we could
mobilize from behind. The situation now is such that we can
manage to put certain limits on the types and numbers of
troops we deploy for these missions.

If I may say so, Mr. Chairman, when I first became
involved in the UNIIMOG mission, the UN had indicated that
it needed 100 or so communicators when the resolution was
passed. Within two weeks we had clearly determined that they
needed 500. We ended up sending the equivalent of two sig-
nals regiments into Iran-Iraq in order to do the job the UN
wanted us to do. Fortunately, we were able to extricate that
unit within four months.

That brought a keen lesson home to me that it was abso-
lutely vital for us to help the UN in designing the force neces-
sary for deployment. To that end, we have always maintained
staff officers here ready to go to New York and staff officers
in New York, on some occasions, to help with the planning
process. For example, the deployment and the form and con-
tent of the mission into Central America was prepared by
Colonel Don Ethol; the form and content of the mission into
Morocco was prepared in the main by Major-General Terry
Liston; our contribution to Namibia was moulded through our
direct intervention.

The point I am making here, senator, is that we do not have
to deploy everything we have on peacekeeping missions. We
can produce a credible and meaningful response to UN
requests by helping them to do the planning and then interject-
ing the type of force that we want to produce for that particu-
lar mission.

I have not answered your basic question, whether we are
spreading ourselves too thin. It is a little difficult to tell at this
stage. As you know, we are in the process of drawing down
our regular force while trying to come to grips with building
up the capability of our reserve force. While this transition is
taking place, we are engaged in a multitude of missions, as
was indicated.

I would expect that we will not be able to come to grips
with that question until 1994-95, when the draw-down will be
complete and we will have some idea of what the militia will
be able to do for us.

[Traduction)

non seulement 2 I’externe mais—vous avez mentionné
Oka—a I'interne également. Je ne veux pas dire qu’Oka était
lié A la guerre froide, loin de 13, mais cela indique un accrois-
sement de la nécessité de dépécher des forces a trés bref pré-
avis, mais en plus petits nombres, pour faire face a des situa-
tions qui ne vont pas jusqu’'a la guerre générale.

Nous avons un mot a dire dans notre participation a ces
genres d’opérations, alors que, dans la guerre froide, nous
étions préts A nous lancer A fond de train en déployant et utili-
sant tout ’arsenal, en mobilisant toutes les réserves. La situa-
tion aujourd’hui nous permet de gérer et de limiter jusqu’a un
certain point le genre et I"ampleur des troupes que nous
déployons pour ces missions.

Si vous me le permettez, monsieur le président, lorsque j’ai
commencé A participer 2 la mission du GOMNUII, I’ONU
avait indiqué lors de I’adoption de la résolution qu’elle avait
besoin d’une centaine de communicateurs. En moins de deux
semaines, nous avions clairement établi qu’il en fallait 500.
Nous avons fini par envoyer I’équivalent de deux régiments
des transmissions en Iran-Irak pour accomplir le travail que
I’ONU nous confiait. Heureusement, nous avons pu sortir
cette unité de 1a en moins de quatre mois.

Cela m’a donné une bonne legon, soit qu’il est absolument
essentiel d’aider PONU a définir la force nécessaire a
déployer. A cette fin, nous avons toujours eu ici des officiers
d’état-major préts a se rendre & New York, et sur place a New
York, dans certains cas, pour préter leur concours au processus
de planification. Par exemple, le déploiement et la forme et le
contenu de la mission en Amérique centrale, par exemple, ont
¢té préparés par le colonel Don Ethol; la forme et le contenu
de la mission au Maroc ont été préparés, pour I’essentiel, par
le major-général Terry Liston; notre contribution a la Namibie
a é1¢ définie par notre intervention directe.

Le point que j’essaie de faire ressortir, sénateur, c’est que
nous n’avons pas & déployer tout ce que nous avons dans les
missions de maintien de la paix. Nous pouvons répondre de
manicre crédible et significative aux demandes de I’ONU en
I’aidant a la planification avant d’envoyer le genre de force
que nous voulons pour une mission particulire.

Je n’ai pas répondu a votre question de base: nous étirons-
nous trop? C’est plutdt difficile a dire a ce stade -ci. Comme
vous le savez, nous sommes en voie de réduire notre force
régulitre, tout en tichant de nous attaquer au développement
de la capacité de notre force de réserve. Pendant cette transi-
tion, nous participons & une foule de missions, comme nous
I’avons dil.

Je ne prévois pas que nous pourrons nous attaquer a cette
question avant 1994-1995, soit avant que la réduction ne soit
achevée et que nous ayons une idée de ce que la milice pourra
faire pour nous.
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Senator Marshall: What is the total force structure of the
regulars plus the reserves of the militia? How much training
and how much emphasis on peacekeeping training are the
militia doing, or is in the works in their new training year?

General Maclnnis: Senator, the militia are trained as the
regular force to general purpose military combat capability.
The degree to which they achieve that depends on how many
days they put it, but the standards are the same. The standards
for regular force training and reserve force training are the
same, except that we do not expect the reservist to be as broad
in his capability as a member of the regular forces. Therefore,
we maintain the standards but narrow his training to some
component of the military occupation to which he is assigned.

For peacekeeping missions, we have a policy to include
reservists in greater or lesser numbers. For example, 2 RCR
from Gagetown took with it a full company of reservists from
Atlantic Canada. The first regiment, the Royal Canadian
Horse Artillery, on its way to Cyprus in September will take a
full company from western Canada.

In preparing for the rotation into Yugoslavia, we expect to
incorporate a large number of reservists, probably a company
plus, into the rotation battalion.

In order to prepare them and to integrate them into the unit
involved, we require them to come out on full-time service,
from some three months to six months on full-time training
with the unit that is preparing itself to go to Cyprus.

Senator Marshall: Do you find that there is a problem in
getting militia on these missions? I am talking of the fact that
many of them are working in a civilian capacity. I understand
that is a problem on a overall training basis. Do you find that
you are readily getting the numbers that you need?

General Maclnnis: The desire among reservists (o partici-
pate in peacekeeping missions, or any mission abroad, is very
high indeed. The number of volunteers is very high.

Senator Marshall: Perhaps that is because of unemploy-
ment.

General Maclnnis: It may well be related to the state of the
economy at this time.

We call upon the new regional structure that the army has
put in place to be able to begin the integrating process that
shows a reservist that he or she is a welcome member of the
forces. As you know, this is precisely the Jjob that I am going

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Marshall: Quelle est la structure de la force
au total, des effectifs de la force régulidre et des réserves de la
milice? Quel entrainement la milice regoit-elle, et quel accent
met-elle sur I’entrainement au maintien de la paix, ou prévoit-
elle pour sa prochaine année d’entrainement?

Le général Maclnnis: Sénateur, la milice est entrainée
comme la force régulicre en fonction du potentiel de combat
militaire 2 fins générales. Son succes dépend du nombre de
jours qu’elle y consacre, mais les normes sont les mémes. Les
normes pour I’entrainement de la force réguliere et pour
I’entrainement de la force de réserve sont les mémes, sauf que
nous ne nous attendons pas que le réserviste ait la méme capa-
cité que le membre de la force réguliere. Par conséquent, nous
maintenons les normes, mais limitons son entrainement a une
certaine composante de la profession militaire a laquelle il est
affecté.

Pour les missions de maintien de la paix, nous avons pour
politique d’inclure les réservistes en nombres plus ou moins
grands. Par exemple, 2 RCR de Gagetown ont amené avec eux
une compagnic compléte de réservistes du Canada de
I’ Atlantique. Le premier régiment, le Royal Canadian Horse
Artillery, en route pour Chypre en septembre, aménera une
compagnie entiere de I’Ouest canadien.

En prévision de la rotation qui nous ameénera en Yougosla-
vie, nous nous attendons d’intégrer un grand nombre de réser-
vistes, probablement au moins une compagnie, dans le batail-
lon de rotation.

Pour les préparer et les intégrer dans I'unité en cause, nous
leur demandons d’étre en service a plein temps aprés quelque
trois A six mois d’entrafnement 2 plein temps avec I'unité qui
se prépare 2 aller a Chypre.

Le sénateur Marshall: Avez-vous de la difficulté 2 faire
participer la milice 2 ces missions? Je pense au fait qu’un
grand nombre des miliciens travaillent en qualité de civils. Je
crois savoir que c’est un probléme, au niveau de
I’entrainement d’ensemble. Avez-vous de la difficulté a obte-
nir les effectifs dont vous avez besoin?

Le général Maclnnis: Le désir, chez les réservistes, de par-
ticiper & des missions de maintien de la paix, ou a toute autre
mission A I’étranger, est effectivement trés grand. Il y a beau-
coup de volontaires.

Le sénateur Marshall: C’est peut-étre 2 cause du chd-
mage.

Le général MacInnis: Cela peut bien tenir 2 I’état de
I’économie & ce moment précis.

Nous faisons appel 2 la nouvelle structure régionale que
’armée a mise sur pied pour enclencher le processus
d’intégration qui montre aux réservistes qu’ils sont les bienve-
nus dans les forces. Comme vous le savez, c’est précisément
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to take upon myself in Atlantic Canada beginning in August
of this year.

Senator LeBlanc: Mr. Chairman, in order that those who
read the minutes of our meeting will have some simple knowl-
edge, who pays for the peacekeeping missions? Does that
come out of the Canadian defence budget or out of the United
Nations’ budget? I would like the facts on the record.

General Maclnnis: That is a question that is often asked.
There has been widespread misconception as to what the costs
are and who pays them. Cyprus aside, in the main UN
peacekeeping missions are paid for by the United Nations.
Canadian contribution to peacekeeping takes two forms. The
first is handled by the Department of External Affairs, and that
is the assessment that is made to all nations when a
peacekeeping mission is put in place, whether or not that
country is participating. In other words, it is part of our contri-
bution to the United Nations to pay for specific peacekeeping
missions whether or not Canada participates.

For the mission itself, the UN reimburses participating
countries up to a certain level. Colonel Houghton can give you
further details, but, in the main, peacekeeping missions pay
for themselves. The incremental cost to the Canadian taxpayer
for this particular mission for Canadian Forces involvement is
very low indeed.

The situation in Cyprus was somewhat different, because in
1964 Canada did not agree with the voluntary contribution
system that was put in place for that mission and chose not (o
contribute. Rather than stay away from the mission, Canada
chose to carry its own costs, so we will say there was a Cana-
dian decision to pay its own way in Cyprus. That has been
reversed somewhat over the years and we do receive some
reimbursement for our participation in Cyprus. However, we
still pay some incremental costs in the order of about $13 mil-
lion a year for Cyprus.

Senator Molgat: 1 would like to ask a supplementary
question. General, you said “incremental costs”. 1 gather that
we still pay for the soldiers? Is supplying the equipment still
our cost, or does the UN cover some of that?

General MaclInnis: The UN pays in the order of $1,000 per
month per soldier for a peacekeeping mission. Basic all-up
costs are covered for our participation in peacekeeping mis-
sions, less Cyprus. There are certain benefits that we give
Canadian soldiers that are above and beyond what the UN
reimburses, so there is a small increment to the cost of the
mission, including basic salary, for our participation in UN
peacekeeping missions, less Cyprus.

[Traduction)

le travail dont je me chargerai dans le Canada de I’ Atlantique
A compter du mois d’ao(t de cette année.

Le sénateur LeBlanc: Monsieur le président, pour la gou-
verne de ceux qui liront le compte rendu de notre réunion, qui
paie les missions de maintien de la paix? Cela sort-il du bud-
get de défense du Canada ou du budget des Nations Unies?
J’aimerais que cela soit établi.

Le général Maclnnis: La question est fréquente. Bien des
idées fausses ont circulé sur ce que cela cofite et sur qui paie.
Chypre mise 2 part, en général, ce sont les Nations Unies qui
paient les missions de maintien de la paix de ’ONU. La con-
tribution canadienne au maintien de la paix prend deux
formes. La premicre, qui est I’affaire du ministere des
Affaires extéricures, est la cotisation que tous les pays sont
invités & verser, lors de I’organisation d’une mission de main-
tien de la paix, qu’ils y participent ou non. Autrement dit, une
partiec de notre contribution aux Nations Unies consiste 2a
payer pour certaines missions de maintien de la paix, que le
Canada y participe ou pas.

Pour la mission elle-mé&me, ’ONU rembourse les pays par-
ticipants, jusqu'd un certain niveau. Le colonel Houghton
pourra vous donner plus de détails, mais dans I’ensemble les
missions de maintien de la paix s’autofinancent. Le cofit mar-
ginal pour le contribuable canadien de cette mission particu-
licre mettant en cause les Forces canadiennes est tres faible.

A Chypre, la situation n’était pas tout 2 fait la méme car en
1964 le Canada n’était pas d’accord sur le systeme de contri-
butions volontaires mis en place pour cette mission et il a
décidé de ne pas contribuer. Plutot que de rester a I’écart de la
mission, le Canada a opté pour payer lui-méme ses cofits.
Disons donc que le Canada a décidé de payer lui-méme ses
colts 2 Chypre. La situation a un peu changé au fil des ans, et
nous recevons un certain remboursement pour notre participa-
tion & Chypre. Cependant, nous payons encore des colits mar-
ginaux de l'ordre de 13 millions de dollars par an pour
Chypre.

Le sénateur Molgat: J’aurais une question supplémentaire
a poser. Général, vous avez dit «colits marginaux». Je suppose
que nous payons toujours pour les soldats? Est-ce toujours
nous qui payons le matériel, ou I’ONU en acquitte-t-elle une
partie?

Le général MacInnis: L’ONU paie quelque chose comme
1 000 $ par mois par soldat pour une mission de maintien de la
paix. Elle couvre les coits de base globaux de notre participa-
tion aux missions de maintien de la paix, sauf a Chypre. Nos
soldats canadiens regoivent certains avantages en sus de ce
que I'ONU rembourse, de sorte qu’il y a un petit supplément
au codt de la mission, y compris le salaire de base, pour notre
participation aux missions de maintien de la paix de ’ONU,
sauf & Chypre.
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Senator Molgat: Rations, POL?

General Maclnnis: Rations are paid for by the UN; POL,
up to a certain limit, is paid for by the UN, even in Cyprus.

Senator Molgat: Rental cost on the equip-
ment—helicopters, APCs, or trucks; or do we cover that?

General Maclnnis: The capital costs are not covered, no.

The Chairman: What is POL?

General Maclnnis: Petrol, oil and lubricants. Fuel and
energy costs.

Senator Molgat: The professor mentioned that there is a

risk that we are seen as surrogates for the U.S. in some of

these jobs; that we are doing a job to protect U.S. interests.
Could you tell us whether that is constant or has that changed
with the Soviet disintegration and the UN now appearing to
some as being more under U.S. influence, because there is not
the counterbalance we saw, for example, in the Gulf War? Is
this an increasing factor?

Professor Klepak: I think that it is. It is important (o
remember that we have gone through several phases. In 1945
everyone thought this was going to be a bipolar world or a
multipolar world, because one was not sure to what extent the
U.K.’s decline had in fact occurred between 1939 and 1945.
There was a great deal of concern at different levels.

When China was still safely nationalist, as the Cold War
began to develop, with four votes in the Security Council and
the permanent members basically on side and only one not
onside, the Soviet Union was somewhat curious about how the
United Nations would be using such operations. Although
Korea is a separate case, that was the type of situation they
were thinking about. The Balkan situation in 1947 also raised
doubts in Soviet minds about whether this was not going to be
an American-dominated organization. Then, of course, with
the massive entry of dozens and dozens of Third World states,
generally speaking more inclined to reformist views of the
world in the 1960s, one saw the Soviet Union more keen in
some ways and the United States less keen on the United

Nations. That was the beginning of the United States’ lack of

interest, shall we say, in paying its assessments.

In more recent years the United States’ first interest was in

what the UN could do for it—a perfectly normal reaction of

any state—and the fact that, clearly, there were very useful
things that the UN was doing in terms of stability.

[Traduction)
Le sénateur Molgat: Les rations, les PP?

Le général Maclnnis: Les rations sont payées par I'ONU;
les PP, jusqu’d une certaine limite, sont payés par I’ONU,
méme a Chypre.

Le sénateur Molgat: Et le cofit de location du matériel, des
hélicopteres, des TTB, ou des camions? Ou est-ce nous qui
payons cela?

Le général Maclnnis: Les cofits en capital ne sont pas cou-
verts, non.

Le président: Les PP, ¢’est quoi?

Le général Maclnnis: Les produits pétroliers. Les cofts de
combustible et d’énergie.

Le sénateur Molgat: Le professeur a fait état du risque que
nous passions pour les envoyés des Etats-Unis dans certaines
de ces missions; que nous fassions un boulot pour protéger les
intéréts américains. Pourriez-vous nous dire si c’est 12 une
constante ou si cela a changé avec la désintégration sovié-
tique, et si I’on semble désormais considérer que I’ONU est
davantage sous I’influence américaine, vu qu’il n’y a plus de
contrepoids, comme nous I’avons vu, par exemple, dans la
guerre du Golfe? Est-ce un facteur qui pese plus lourd?

Le professeur Klepak: Je pense que oui. Il ne faut pas
oublier que nous sommes passés par plusieurs phases. En
1945, tout le monde croyait que nous allions avoir un monde
bipolaire, ou un monde multipolaire, car on ne savait plus trop
quelle était ampleur du recul qu’avait essuyé le Royaume-
Uni entre 1939 et 1945. On s’inquiétait beaucoup 2 différents
niveaux.

A I'époque ol le nationalisme chinois ne faisait encore
aucun doute, au début de la guerre froide, disposant de quatre
voix au Conseil de sécurité et du temps que les membres per-
manents Ctaient fondamentalement de son c6té, a une seule
exception prés, I’Union soviétique était plutdt curieuse sur
I’utilisation que les Nations Unies allaient faire de ces opéra-
tions. Bien que la Corée soit un cas distinct, ¢’était le genre de
situation 2 laquelle elle songeait. La situation balkanique de
1947 a aussi fait craindre aux Soviétiques que 'ONU ne
devienne une organisation dominée par les Américains. Puis,
bien sdr, avee Ientrée massive de douzaines et de douzaines
d’Etats du Tiers-Monde, en général plus enclins aux vues
réformistes du monde dans les années 1960, on a vu I’Union
soviétique plus portée, a certains égards, et les Etats-Unis
moins portés pour les Nations Unies. C’est 12 que les Etats-
Unis ont commencé A ne plus avoir envie, mettons, de régler
leur cotisation.

Ces dernitres années, les Etats-Unis se sont surtout intéres-
sés A ce que I'ONU pourrait faire pour eux—c’est une réaction
parfaitement normale pour n’importe quel Etat—et au fait que
les Nations Unies pouvaient clairement faire une foule de cho-
ses utiles pour la stabilité.

s
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It is important to remember that we are talking about a new
scene that is developing, a new world order. We have the end
of one element of a balance, to some degree, although to a
great extent we are really considering the Soviet Union as a
matter of courtesy. It is not really a superpower. It just hap-
pened to have had a lot of nuclear weapons, but it did not have
the political or economic, or even ideological, clout to go with
it. With the end of that, one sees a United States which is itself
feeling its way and is not sure about what kind of world it is
now going to play a part in. It sees, naturally, the United
Nations as a very useful adjunct. If the United Nations is inter-
ested in stability and if the United States, as dominant profit-
ing country from the world scene as it is developing, is inter-
ested in stability, then there is a natural commonality of
interest between the two.

Unfortunately, perhaps because of the American experience
in the OAS and to some extent elsewhere, where the term
“peacekeeping” was frequently used, such as in the Domini-
can Republic, in the El Salvador-Honduras dispute of 1969, in
Guyana-Venezuela in the 1960s, and certainly in Latin
America, there was a view that it was a long tradition of the
United States to use international organizations, and even the
word “peacekeeping”, to justify its actions.

My own view is that we are at the stage where we cannot
quite be sure. Naturally, the United States will profit as much
as it can from what the United Nations has in common with it
in terms of justification. The Persian Gulf War, again not
peacekeeping in strict terms, was an example of this. It seems
to me that the extent to which commonality of interest will
continue and the extent to which people will continue to view
it in a particular way will be the main issues.

I do not think people are seeing Canada specifically as
being particularly pro-American or pro-United States interests
with respect to stability. People do see us as acting indepen-
dently on these issues, and we have proven that we do act
independently on these issues. However, there are some,
essentially on the left and in the Third World, who see this as
a danger.

Senator Molgat: At the moment, you do not see it as an
increasing problem?

Professor Klepak: I see it as an increasing problem, yes. I
just do not know to what extent we will have other counter-
vailing factors. It is a little like Japan and Europe. The United
States is only the dominant world power because Japan and
Europe refuse to act on the world scene in political and mili-
tary terms. Once they decide to have sufficient unity, in the

[Traduction)

N’oublions pas que nous parlons d’une nouvelle scéne en
voie de se concrétiser, d’un nouvel ordre mondial. Nous avons
la fin d’un élément d’un équilibre, jusqu’a un certain point,
mais, dans une large mesure, c’est véritablement par courtoi-
sie que nous tenons compte de I'Union soviétique. Elle n’est
pas vraiment une superpuissance. Il s’est trouvé qu’elle avait
beaucoup d’armes nucléaires, mais elle n’avait pas le poids
politique ni économique ni méme idéologique correspondant.
Avec I'effondrement de ce régime, on voit les Etats-Unis pren-
dre lentement leur place et, sans étre strs du genre de monde
dans lequel ils devront désormais jouer leur role. Naturelle-
ment, les Nations Unies leur apparaissent un auxiliaire trés
utile. Si les Nations Unies s’intéressent aussi 2 la stabilité et si
les Etats-Unis, comme pays dominant avantagé par la scene
mondiale en train de prendre forme s’intéressent a la stabilité,
alors il y a une communauté naturelle d’intéréts entre les
deux.

Malheureusement, peut-étre, a cause de I’expérience améri-
caine au sein de I’OEA, et, jusqu’a un certain point, en
d’autres endroits ol le terme «maintien de la paix» a été servi
A toutes les sauces, comme en République dominicaine, dans
le conflit entre le Salvador et le Honduras en 1969 et entre la
Guyane et le Venezuela dans les années 1960 et, en tout cas,
en Amérique latine, on estimait que les Etats-Unis avaient une
longue tradition consistant a exploiter les organisations inter-
nationales et méme le terme «maintien de la paix» pour justi-
fier leurs actions.

Personnellement, j’estime que nous en sommes au point o
nous ne savons plus trés bien. Naturellement, les Etats-Unis
profiteront le plus possible de ce que les Nations Unies ont en
commun avec eux au niveau des justifications. La guerre du
Golfe persique, qui, répétons-le, n’était pas une opération de
maintien de la paix au sens strict, en est un exemple. La
mesure dans laquelle cette communauté d’intéréts persistera,
et la mesure dans laquelle elle restera visible, seront, me
semble-t-il, les principaux enjeux.

Le Canada n’est pas spécifiquement pergu, selon moi,
comme particulierement pro-américain ou pour I'intérét des
Etats-Unis pour la stabilité. On nous pergoit comme indépen-
dants sur ces questions, sur lesquelles nous avons marqué
notre indépendance. Cependant, il y en a, essentiellement 2 la
gauche et dans le Tiers-Monde, pour qui cela est un danger.

Le sénateur Molgat: A ce stade-ci, n’y voyez-vous pas un
probléme croissant?

Le professeur Klepak: J’y vois un probléme croissant, oui.
J’ignore tout simplement dans quelle mesure il y aura d’autres
facteurs compensateurs. C’est un peu comme le Japon et
I’Europe. Si les Etats-Unis sont la puissance mondiale domi-
nante, c’est seulement parce que le Japon et I’Europe refusent
de se manifester politiquement et militairement sur la scéne
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case of Europe and sufficient drive, in the case of Japan, to act
on the world stage then we will have a multipolar world
indeed. American foreign policy is very clever on this. It does
the things which Tokyo and Bonn want, hence it cuts away
some of the interest of those two capitals in acting on the
world stage, and that is reinforced obviously by historical
experience.

Senator Molgat: As Canadians we should be aware of this
and perhaps somewhat cautious in this regard?

Professor Klepak: That is the way I feel, yes. We should
be cautious, particularly in terms of keeping our own total
political spectrum in favour of this activity, which I personally
feel is a very valid one.

Senator Molgat: If there is a conflict somewhere and there
is no agreement between the two sides, is it still worth our
while getting involved in that?

Professor Klepak: It depends on what you mean by
“agreement”. Do you mean that we would get involved in the
peace process early on, with the offering of expert advice on
how one could further negotiations, or how a UN force could
be useful? For example, in Central America we were involved
from the beginning and were very useful and received no end
of accolades. In that sense, one should be involved because
one is interested in the stability and one is interested in doing
good things in the world, I hope. I would be much less inter-
ested in getting involved in operations where one is militarily
involved, with a presence on the ground in dangerous circum-
stances. That is the type of thing that would cut away public
support for peacekeeping. If we started to have casualty lists
in countries with which we did not have much in common or
where we did not feel particularly involved, we would have
not only the financial questions, which we frequently have on
this issue, but Canadian Forces personnel survival-related
issues as well.

Yes, we should be involved in terms of the diplomatic nego-
tiations and offering our best advice. We have a lot that can
help in many areas. In terms of changing our rules, no, we
should be very cautious about where we involve ourselves and
where we send forces.

Senator Molgat: The situation in Yugoslavia is not a UN
one?

General MaclInnis: Yes, it is.

Senator Molgat: We are there at the request of the UN, not
at the request of the European States?

[Traduction)

mondiale. Dés qu’ils auront décidé d’avoir suffisamment
d’unité, dans le cas de I’Europe, et suffisamment d’énergie,
dans le cas du Japon, pour intervenir sur la scéne mondiale,
alors, certes, nous aurons un monde multipolaire. La politique
étrangere américaine est trés habile sur ce point. Elle fait ce
que Tokyo et Bonn désirent, enlevant ainsi a ces deux capi-
tales une partic de la volonté de se manifester sur la scéne
mondiale, ce que vient manifestement renforcer I’expérience
du passé.

Le sénateur Molgat: En tant que Canadiens, nous devons
en Ctre conscients, et peut-Ctre plutdt prudents a cet égard?

Le professeur Klepak: C’est ce que je pense, oui. Nous
devons étre prudents, particulierement en nous en tenant 2
notre programme politique d’ensemble en faveur de cette acti-
vité, qui m’apparait, personnellement, tout a fait valide.

Le sénateur Molgat: S’il y a un conflit quelque part et que
les deux camps n’arrivent pas a s’entendre, vaut-il toujours la
peine d’intervenir?

Le professeur Klepak: Cela dépend de ce que vous voulez
dire par «s’entendre». Voulez-vous dire que nous participe-
rions dés le départ au processus de paix en donnant des con-
seils d’experts sur la fagon de faire avancer les négociations,
ou sur I'utilité que pourrait avoir une force de ’ONU? Par
exemple, en Amérique centrale, nous sommes intervenus des
le départ, et nous avons ét¢ trés utiles, ce qui nous a valu des
¢loges a n’en plus finir. En ce sens, il faut intervenir, parce
que nous avons un intérét dans la stabilité, que nous voulons
faire du bien dans le monde, j’espere. Je serais beaucoup
moins porté a intervenir dans des opérations comportant une
intervention militaire avec présence sur le terrain dans des
situations dangereuses. C’est le genre de chose qui ferait fon-
dre I’appui du public pour le maintien de la paix. Si nous com-
mencions A avoir des listes de morts dans des pays avec les-
quels nous n’avons rien en commun ou dans lesquels nous ne
nous sentons pas particulicrement impliqués, cela souléverait
non seulement les questions financiéres, qui se posent souvent
dans ces cas-13, mais encore des questions de survie du per-
sonnel des Forces canadiennes également.

Oui, il faut intervenir dans les négociations diplomatiques,
et offrir nos meilleurs conseils. Nous avons beaucoup 2 offrir
dans bien des domaines. Pour ce qui est de changer nos régles,
non, nous devons &tre trds prudents en ce qui concerne les
endroits ot nous interviendrons et enverrons des forces.

Le sénateur Molgat: La situation en Yougoslavie n’est pas
I’affaire de ’ONU?

Le général Maclnnis: Oui, en effet.

Le sénateur Molgat: Nous y sommes 2 la demande de
I’ONU, et non pas a la demande des Etats européens?
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General Maclnnis: We are there in two missions. The first
mission we became involved in was sponsored by the Confer-
ence of Security and Cooperation in Europe and organized by
the European community, and it involves four additional
nations: Canada, Sweden, Czechoslovakia and one other. We
have participated in that since it began, with 11 monitors, and
that mission continues to operate. It is in the process of being
extricated from Bosnia-Herzegovina. In fact, the last monitor
is out of there today and all Canadians are in Zagreb waiting
to come home or to be rotated.

The second mission is the United Nations protection force
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